

MINISTRY OF ROADS AND TRANSPORT STATE DEPARTMENT FOR TRANSPORT



P. O. Box 52692 - 00200 NAIROBI www.transport.go.ke

PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTS

Bidding Document for Procurement of Goods

Procurement of ICT Equipment

RfB No: KE-SDOT-479041-GO-RFB

Project: Horn of Africa Gateway Development Project

Purchaser: State Department for Transport

Country: Kenya

Issued on: 06th May,2025

Invitation for Bids

COUNTRY: Republic of Kenya

NAME OF PROJECT: Horn of Africa Gateway Development Project

Loan No.: KE – 6768

Contract Title: Procurement of ICT Equipment Reference No.: KE-SDOT-479041-GO-RFB

1. The Republic of Kenya has received financing from the World Bank toward the cost of the Horn of Africa Gateway Development Project, and intends to apply part of the proceeds toward payments under the contract for Procurement of ICT Equipment. Bidding process will be governed by the World Bank's rules and procedures

2. The State Department for Transport now invites sealed bids from eligible bidders for:

No	Item Description	Quantity Required	Location of Delivery	Delivery Period
		Lot 1		
1	Desktop Computer	50		
2	Ultra Power Supply 1.5 KVA	50		
3	Smart Television	02		
4	Shredder	02		
5	Heavy Duty Printer	02		
6	Medium Duty Printer	09	State Department	
7	Laptop	41	State Department	15 Days
8	Corporate Anti-Virus	150	for Transport	
9	iMac	01		
10	Mac Book Pro	01		
11	Microsoft Surface Pro	02		
12	Audio Visual Conferencing Equipment	01	7	
		Lot 2		
1	Laptop	20		
2	All – in One Desktop Computer	50		
3	Public Address System	01	Kenya Railways Corporation	15 Days
4	Ticketing Hand Held Devices	20	Corporation	
5	Rugged Hand Held Data Capture Devices	06		

Detailed specifications of the items are contained in the bidding documents. Bids that do not meet the evaluation criteria as set in the bidding document SHALL be deemed non-responsive and SHALL be disqualified.

- 3. Bidding will be conducted through the International Competitive Bidding procedures as specified in the World Bank's *Guidelines: Procurement Regulations for the Procurement of Goods, Works and Non-Consulting Services for IPF Borrowers* 5th Edition ("Procurement Guidelines"), and is open to all eligible bidders as defined in the Procurement Guidelines and indicated above. In addition, please refer to paragraphs 3.14 to 3.16 setting forth the World Bank's policy on conflict of interest.
- 4. Enquiries from interested eligible bidders may be received through scms@transport.go.ke 10 (ten) days before the closure of the bidding process.
- 5. A complete set of bidding documents in English may be downloaded by interested eligible bidders from www.tenders.go.ke and www.transport.go.ke.
- 6. Bids must be delivered in hard copy and placed in the Quotation Box located at the main reception, Transcom House or sent to the address below on or before 28th May, 2025 at 1100 hours. **Electronic bidding will not be permitted**. Late bids will be rejected and returned unopened. Bids will be publicly opened in the presence of the bidders and/or their designated representatives who choose to attend at the address below on 28th May, 2025 at 1100 hours.
- 7. All bids must be accompanied by a Bid Security of KES 199,069.50 for Lot 1 and KES 483,424.50 for Lot 2. For firms under the Access to Government Procurement Opportunities, submit a duly signed Bid Securing Declaration
- 8. The address referred to above is:

Principal Secretary
State Department for Transport
Attn: Head, Supply Chain Management Services
P. O. Box 56292 – 00200 Nairobi Kenya
E-mail: scms@transport.go.ke

Web site: www.transport.go.ke

Head, Supply Chain Management Services

For: **Principal Secretary**

Table of Contents

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures	1
Section I. Instructions to Bidders	3
Section II. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)	
Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria	
Section IV. Bidding Forms	
Section V. Eligible Countries	
Section VI. Bank Policy - Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices	
PART 2 – Supply Requirements	67
Section VII. Schedule of Requirements	69
PART 3 - Contract	117
Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract	119
Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract	
Section X. Contract Forms	

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures

Section I. Instructions to Bidders

Table of Clauses

A.	General	5
1.	Scope of Bid	5
2.	Source of Funds	
3.	Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices	5
4.	Eligible Bidders	
5.	Eligible Goods and Related Services	8
В.	Contents of Bidding Document	9
6.	Sections of Bidding Document	9
7.	Clarification of Bidding Documents	10
8.	Amendment of Bidding Document	10
C.	Preparation of Bids	10
9.	Cost of Bidding	10
	Language of Bid	
	.Documents Comprising the Bid	
	Letter of Bid and Price Schedules	
	.Alternative Bids	
	.Bid Prices and Discounts	
	.Currencies of Bid and Payment	
16	Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Conformity of the Goods and Rel	
17	Services Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder	
1 / 1 Ω	. Period of Validity of Bids	15
	.Bid Security	
19 20	Format and Signing of Bid	18
	Submission and Opening of Bids	
	.Sealing and Marking of Bids	
	Deadline for Submission of Bids	
	Late Bids	
	.Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids	
25	.Bid Opening	20
	Evaluation and Comparison of Bids	
	. Confidentiality	21
27	Clarification of Bids	21

22
22
22
23
23
23
24
25
25
26
26
26
26
26
27
27

Section I. Instructions to Bidders

A. General

1. Scope of Bid

- 1.1 In connection with the Invitation for Bids, specified in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS), the Purchaser, as specified in the BDS, issues these Bidding Documents for the supply of Goods and Related Services incidental thereto as specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. The name, identification and number of lots (contracts) of this International Competitive Bidding (ICB) procurement are specified in the BDS.
- 1.2 Throughout these Bidding Documents:
 - (a) the term "in writing" means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, fax, telex) with proof of receipt;
 - (b) if the context so requires, "singular" means "plural" and vice versa; and
 - (c) "day" means calendar day.

2. Source of Funds

- 2.1 The Borrower or Recipient (hereinafter called "Borrower") specified in the BDS has applied for or received financing (hereinafter called "funds") from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development or the International Development Association (hereinafter called "the Bank")in an amount specified in BDS, toward the project named in BDS The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract for which these Bidding Documents are issued.
- 2.2 Payment by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Loan (or other financing) Agreement. The Loan (or other financing) Agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the Loan (or other financing) account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, if such payment or import, to the knowledge of the Bank, is prohibited by decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan (or other financing) Agreement or have any claim to the proceeds of the Loan (or other financing).
- 3. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices
- 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Section VI.

3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall cause their agents (where declared or not), subcontractors, subconsultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to any prequalification process, bid submission and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.

4. Eligible Bidders

- 4.1 A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, a government-owned entity—subject to ITB 4.5—or any combination of such entities in the form of a joint venture (JV) under an existing agreement or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution. Unless specified in the BDS, there is no limit on the number of members in a JV.
- 4.2 A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this bidding process, if the Bidder:
 - (a) directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; or
 - (b) receives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; or
 - (c) has the same legal representative as another Bidder; or
 - (d) has a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Purchaser regarding this bidding process; or
 - (e) participates in more than one bid in this bidding process. Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in which such Bidder is involved. However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same subcontractor in more than one bid; or
 - (f) any of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the works that are the subject of the bid; or

- (g) any of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Purchaser or Borrower for the Contract implementation; or
- (h) would be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the project specified in the BDS ITB 2.1 that it provided or were provided by any affiliate that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with that firm; or
- (i) has a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Borrower (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the loan) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the bidding documents or specifications of the contract, and/or the bid evaluation process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Bank throughout the procurement process and execution of the contract
- 4.3 A Bidder may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITB 4.7. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is constituted, incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association) and its registration documents, as the case may be. This criterion also shall apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed subcontractors or sub-consultants for any part of the Contract including related Services.
- 4.4 A Bidder that has been sanctioned by the Bank in accordance with the above ITB 3.1, including in accordance with the Bank's Guidelines on Preventing and Combating Corruption in Projects Financed by IBRD Loans and IDA Credits and Grants ("Anti-Corruption Guidelines"), shall be ineligible to be prequalified for, bid for, or be awarded a Bank-financed contract or benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or otherwise, during such period of time as the Bank shall have determined. The list of debarred firms and individuals is available at the electronic address **specified in the BDS.**
- 4.5 Bidders that are Government-owned enterprises or institutions in the Purchaser's Country may participate only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous (ii) operate under

commercial law, and (iii) are not dependent agencies of the Purchaser. To be eligible, a government-owned enterprise or institution shall establish to the Bank's satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other information the Bank may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from the government (ii) does not currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to the government, can acquire rights and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for repayment of its debts, and can be declared bankrupt; and (iv) is not bidding for a contract to be awarded by the department or agency of the government which under their applicable laws or regulations is the reporting or supervisory authority of the enterprise or has the ability to exercise influence or control over the enterprise or institution.

- 4.6 A Bidder shall not be under suspension from bidding by the Purchaser as the result of the operation of a Bid–Securing Declaration.
- 4.7 Firms and individuals may be ineligible if so indicated in Section V and (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Bank is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of goods or the contracting of works or services required; or (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's country prohibits any import of goods or contracting of works or services from that country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.
- 4.8 A Bidder shall provide such evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Purchaser, as the Purchaser shall reasonably request.
- 5. Eligible Goods and Related Services
- 5.1 All the Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank may have their origin in any country in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries.
- 5.2 For purposes of this Clause, the term "goods" includes commodities, raw material, machinery, equipment, and industrial plants; and "related services" includes services such as insurance, installation, training, and initial maintenance.
- 5.3 The term "origin" means the country where the goods have been mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured or processed; or, through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another

commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.

B. Contents of Bidding Document

6. Sections of Bidding Document

6.1 The Bidding Documents consist of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 8.

PART 1 Bidding Procedures

- Section I. Instructions to Bidders (ITB)
- Section II. Bidding Data Sheet (BDS)
- Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- Section IV. Bidding Forms
- Section V. Eligible Countries
- Section VI. Bank Policy-Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

PART 2 Supply Requirements

Section VII. Schedule of Requirements

PART 3 Contract

- Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract (GCC)
- Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC)
- Section X. Contract Forms
- 6.2 The Invitation for Bids issued by the Purchaser is not part of the Bidding Document.
- 6.3 Unless obtained directly from the Purchaser, the Purchaser is not responsible for the completeness of the document, responses to requests for clarification, the Minutes of the pre-Bid meeting (if any), or Addenda to the Bidding Document in accordance with ITB 8. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Purchaser shall prevail.
- 6.4 The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Documents and to furnish with its Bid all information or documentation as is required by the Bidding Documents.

7. Clarification of Bidding Documents

7.1 A Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Document shall contact the Purchaser in writing at the Purchaser's address specified in the BDS. The Purchaser will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received prior to the deadline for submission of bids within a period specified in the BDS. The Purchaser shall forward copies of its response to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. If so specified in the BDS, the Purchaser shall also promptly publish its response at the web page identified in the BDS. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of the Bidding Documents, the Purchaser shall amend the Bidding Documents following the procedure under ITB 8 and ITB 22.2.

8. Amendment of Bidding Document

- 8.1 At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Purchaser may amend the Bidding Documents by issuing addenda.
- 8.2 Any addendum issued shall be part of the Bidding Documents and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Bidding Documents from the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 6.3. The Purchaser shall also promptly publish the addendum on the Purchaser's web page in accordance with ITB 7.1.
- 8.3 To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids, pursuant to ITB 22.2.

C. Preparation of Bids

9. Cost of Bidding

9.1 The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its bid, and the Purchaser shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process.

10. Language of Bid

10.1 The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language specified in the BDS. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages into the language specified in the BDS, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern.

11. Documents Comprising the Bid

- 11.1 The Bid shall comprise the following:
 - (a) Letter of Bid in accordance with ITB 12;
 - (b) completed schedules, in accordance with ITB 12 and 14
 - (c) Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, in accordance with ITB 19.1;
 - (d) alternative bids, if permissible, in accordance with ITB 13;
 - (e) written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 20.2;
 - (f) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted;
 - (g) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder's eligibility to bid;
 - (h) documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 16, that the Goods and Related Services to be supplied by the Bidder are of eligible origin;
 - documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 16 and 30, that the Goods and Related Services conform to the Bidding Documents;
 - (j) any other document required in the BDS.
- 11.2 In addition to the requirements under ITB 11.1, bids submitted by a JV shall include a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Alternatively, a letter of intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement in the event of a successful bid shall be signed by all members and submitted with the bid, together with a copy of the proposed Agreement.
- 11.3 The Bidder shall furnish in the Letter of Bid information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Bid.

12. Letter of Bid and Price Schedules

12.1. The Letter of Bid and Price Schedules shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The forms must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 20.2. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested.

13. Alternative Bids

13.1. Unless otherwise **specified in the BDS**, alternative bids shall not be considered.

Discounts

- **14. Bid Prices and** 14.1 The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid and in the Price Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified below.
 - 14.2 All lots (contracts) and items must be listed and priced separately in the Price Schedules.
 - 14.3 The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid in accordance with ITB 12.1 shall be the total price of the bid, excluding any discounts offered.
 - 14.4 The Bidder shall quote any discounts and indicate the methodology for their application in the Letter of Bid, in accordance with ITB 12.1.
 - 14.5 Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder's performance of the Contract and not subject to variation on any account, unless otherwise specified in the BDS A bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation shall be treated as nonresponsive and shall be rejected, pursuant to ITB 29. However, if in accordance with the BDS, prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract, a bid submitted with a fixed price quotation shall not be rejected, but the price adjustment shall be treated as zero.
 - 14.6 If so specified in ITB 1.1, bids are being invited for individual lots (contracts) or for any combination of lots (packages). Unless otherwise specified in the BDS, prices quoted shall correspond to 100 % of the items specified for each lot and to 100% of the quantities specified for each item of a lot. Bidders wishing to offer discounts for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 14.4 provided the bids for all lots (contracts) are opened at the same time.
 - 14.7 The terms EXW, CIP, and other similar terms shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms, published by The International Chamber of Commerce, as specified in the BDS.
 - 14.8 Prices shall be quoted as specified in each Price Schedule included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The dis-aggregation of price components is required solely for the purpose of facilitating the comparison of bids by the Purchaser. This shall not in any way limit the Purchaser's right to contract on any of the terms offered. In quoting prices, the Bidder shall be free to use transportation through carriers registered in any eligible country,

in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries. Similarly, the Bidder may obtain insurance services from any eligible country in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries. Prices shall be entered in the following manner:

- (a) For Goods manufactured in the Purchaser's Country:
 - (i) the price of the Goods quoted EXW (ex-works, exfactory, ex warehouse, ex showroom, or off-the-shelf, as applicable), including all customs duties and sales and other taxes already paid or payable on the components and raw material used in the manufacture or assembly of the Goods;
 - (ii) any Purchaser's Country sales tax and other taxes which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder; and
 - (iii) the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods to their final destination (Project Site) **specified in the BDS.**
- (b) For Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, to be imported:
 - (i) the price of the Goods, quoted CIP named place of destination, in the Purchaser's Country, as specified in the BDS;
 - (ii) the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods from the named place of destination to their final destination (Project Site) specified in the BDS;
- (c) For Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported:
 - (i) the price of the Goods, including the original import value of the Goods; plus any mark-up (or rebate); plus any other related local cost, and custom duties and other import taxes already paid or to be paid on the Goods already imported.
 - the custom duties and other import taxes already paid (need to be supported with documentary evidence) or to be paid on the Goods already imported;

- (iii) the price of the Goods, obtained as the difference between (i) and (ii) above;
- (iv) any Purchaser's Country sales and other taxes which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder; and
- (v) the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods to their final destination (Project Site) specified in the BDS.
- (d) for Related Services, other than inland transportation and other services required to convey the Goods to their final destination, whenever such Related Services are specified in the Schedule of Requirements:
 - (i) the price of each item comprising the Related Services (inclusive of any applicable taxes).

- 15. Currencies of Bid and Payment
- 15.1 The currency(ies) of the bid and the currency(ies) of payments shall be as specified in the BDS. The Bidder shall quote in the currency of the Purchaser's Country the portion of the bid price that corresponds to expenditures incurred in the currency of the Purchaser's country, unless otherwise specified in the BDS.
- 15.2 The Bidder may express the bid price in any currency. If the Bidder wishes to be paid in a combination of amounts in different currencies, it may quote its price accordingly but shall use no more than three foreign currencies in addition to the currency of the Purchaser's Country.
- 16. Documents
 Establishing
 the Eligibility
 and
 Conformity of
 the Goods
 and Related
 Services
- 16.1 To establish the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services in accordance with ITB 5, Bidders shall complete the country of origin declarations in the Price Schedule Forms, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 16.2 To establish the conformity of the Goods and Related Services to the Bidding Documents, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the documentary evidence that the Goods conform to the technical specifications and standards specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.
- 16.3 The documentary evidence may be in the form of literature, drawings or data, and shall consist of a detailed item by item description of the essential technical and performance characteristics of the Goods and Related Services, demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Related Services to the technical specification, and if applicable, a statement of

- deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.
- 16.4 The Bidder shall also furnish a list giving full particulars, including available sources and current prices of spare parts, special tools, etc., necessary for the proper and continuing functioning of the Goods during the period **specified in the BDS** following commencement of the use of the goods by the Purchaser.
- 16.5 Standards for workmanship, process, material, and equipment, as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may offer other standards of quality, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers, provided that it demonstrates, to the Purchaser's satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.
- 17. Documents
 Establishing
 the Eligibility
 and
 Qualifications
 of the Bidder
- 17.1 To establish Bidder's their eligibility in accordance with ITB 4, Bidders shall complete the Letter of Bid, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 17.2 The documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted shall establish to the Purchaser's satisfaction:
 - (a) that, if **required in the BDS**, a Bidder that does not manufacture or produce the Goods it offers to supply shall submit the Manufacturer's Authorization using the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms to demonstrate that it has been duly authorized by the manufacturer or producer of the Goods to supply these Goods in the Purchaser's Country;
 - (b) that, if required in the BDS, in case of a Bidder not doing business within the Purchaser's Country, the Bidder is or will be (if awarded the contract) represented by an Agent in the country equipped and able to carry out the Supplier's maintenance, repair and spare parts-stocking obligations prescribed in the Conditions of Contract and/or Technical Specifications; and
 - (c) that the Bidder meets each of the qualification criterion specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 18. Period of Validity of Bids
- 18.1. Bids shall remain valid until the date specified in the BDS or any extended date if amended by the Purchaser in accordance with ITB8. A Bid that is not valid until the date specified in the BDS, or any

- extended date if amended by the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 8, shall be rejected by the Purchaser as nonresponsive.
- 18.2. In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiry of the bid validity, the Purchaser may request bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security is requested in accordance with ITB Clause 18, it shall also be extended for a corresponding period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid, except as provided in ITB 18.3.
- 18.3. If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity specified in accordance with ITB 18.1, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:
 - (a) In the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the bid price adjusted by the factor specified in the BDS.
 - (b) In the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made.
 - (c) In any case, bid evaluation shall be based on the bid price without taking into consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above.

19. Bid Security

- 19.1. The Bidder shall furnish as part of its bid, either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a bid security, as **specified in the BDS**, in original form and, in the case of a bid security. In the amount and currency **specified in the BDS**.
- 19.2. A Bid Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.
- 19.3. If a bid security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the bid security shall be a demand guarantee in any of the following forms at the Bidder's option:
 - (a) an unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or financial institution (such as an insurance, bonding or surety company);
 - (b) an irrevocable letter of credit;
 - (c) a cashier's or certified check; or
 - (d) another security specified in the BDS,

from a reputable source from an eligible country. If the unconditional guarantee is issued by a financial institution located outside the Purchaser's Country, the issuing financial institution shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser's Country to make it enforceable. In the case of a bank guarantee, the bid security shall be submitted either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms, or in another substantially similar format approved by the Purchaser prior to bid submission. The bid security shall be valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the original date of expiry of the bid validity, or beyond any extended date if requested under ITB 18.2.

- 19.4. If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, any bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security shall be rejected by the Purchaser as non-responsive.
- 19.5. If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder's signing the contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB 42.
- 19.6. The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the contract and furnished the required performance security.
- 19.7. The Bid Security may be forfeited:
 - (a) if a Bidder withdraws its bid prior to the expiry date of the bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Bidder;
 - (b) if the successful Bidder fails to:
 - (i) sign the Contract in accordance with ITB41; or
 - (ii) furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 42.
- 19.8. The bid security or Bid- Securing Declaration of a JV must be in the name of the JV that submits the bid. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of bidding, the bid security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future members as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB 4.1 and ITB 11.2.
- 19.9. If a bid security is **not required in the BDS**, pursuant to ITB 19.1, and

- (a) if a Bidder withdraws its bid prior to the expiry date of the bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Bidder, or
- (b) if the successful Bidder fails to: sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 41; or furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 42;

the Borrower may, **if provided for in the BDS**, declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Purchaser for a period of time **as stated in the BDS**.

20. Format and Signing of Bid

- 20.1 The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the bid as described in ITB 11 and clearly mark it "ORIGINAL." Alternative bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, shall be clearly marked "ALTERNATIVE." In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the bid, in the number **specified in the BDS** and clearly mark them "COPY." In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.
- 20.2 The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the BDS and shall be attached to the bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be signed or initialed by the person signing the bid.
- 20.3 In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives.
- 20.4 Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the bid.

D. Submission and Opening of Bids

21. Sealing and Marking of Bids

- 21.1. The Bidder shall enclose the original and all copies of the bid, including alternative bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, in separate sealed envelopes, duly marking the envelopes as "ORIGINAL", "ALTERNATIVE" and "COPY." These envelopes containing the original and the copies shall then be enclosed in one single envelope.
- 21.2. The inner and outer envelopes shall:
 - (a) bear the name and address of the Bidder;

- (b) be addressed to the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 24.1;
- (c) bear the specific identification of this bidding process indicated in ITB 1.1; and
- (d) bear a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening.
- 21.3. If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Purchaser will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid.
- 22. Deadline for Submission of Bids
- 22.1. Bids must be received by the Purchaser at the address and no later than the date and time **specified in the BDS. When so specified in the BDS**, bidders shall have the option of submitting their bids electronically. Bidders submitting bids electronically shall follow the electronic bid submission procedures **specified in the BDS**.
- 22.2. The Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids by amending the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Purchaser and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended.
- 23. Late Bids
- 23.1. The Purchaser shall not consider any bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB 22. Any bid received by the Purchaser after the deadline for submission of bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder.
- 24. Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids
- 24.1. A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid after it has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization (the power of attorney) in accordance with ITB 20.2, (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies). The corresponding substitution or modification of the bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:
 - (a) prepared and submitted in accordance with ITB 20 and 21 (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked "WITHDRAWAL," "SUBSTITUTION," or "MODIFICATION;" and
 - (b) received by the Purchaser prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB 22.
- 24.2. Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 24.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders.

24.3. No bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof.

25. Bid Opening

- 25.1. Except as in the cases specified in ITB 23 and 24, the Purchaser shall publicly open and read out in accordance with ITB 25.3 all bids received by the deadline at the date, time and place specified in the BDS in the presence of Bidders' designated representatives and anyone who choose to attend. Any specific electronic bid opening procedures required if electronic bidding is permitted in accordance with ITB 22.1, shall be as specified in the BDS.
- 25.2. First, envelopes marked "WITHDRAWAL" shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. If the withdrawal envelope does not contain a copy of the "power of attorney" confirming the signature as a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder, the corresponding bid will be opened. No bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at bid opening. Next, envelopes marked "SUBSTITUTION" shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding Bid being substituted, and the substituted Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No Bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at bid opening. Envelopes marked "MODIFICATION" shall be opened and read out with the corresponding Bid. No Bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at Bid opening. Only bids that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further.
- 25.3. All other envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a modification; the total Bid Prices, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and alternative bids; the presence or absence of a Bid Security, if required; and any other details as the Purchaser may consider appropriate. Only discounts and alternative bids read out at Bid opening shall be considered for evaluation. The Letter of Bid and the Price Schedules are to be initialed by representatives of the Purchaser attending bid opening in the manner **specified** in the BDS. The Purchaser shall neither discuss the merits of any bid nor reject any bid (except for late bids, in accordance with ITB 25.1).

25.4. The Purchaser shall prepare a record of the bid opening that shall include, as a minimum: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification; the Bid Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts, and alternative bids; and the presence or absence of a Bid Security, if one was required. The Bidders' representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder's signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Bidders.

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids

26. Confidentiality

- 26.1 Information relating to the evaluation of bids and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with the bidding process until information on Contract Award is communication to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 40.
- 26.2 Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Purchaser in the evaluation or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.
- 26.3 Notwithstanding ITB 26.2, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Purchaser on any matter related to the bidding process, it should do so in writing.

27. Clarification of Bids

- 27.1 To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison of the bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder in respect to its Bid and that is not in response to a request by the Purchaser shall not be considered. The Purchaser's request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Purchaser in the Evaluation of the bids, in accordance with ITB 31.
- 27.2 If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its bid by the date and time set in the Purchaser's request for clarification, its bid may be rejected.

28. Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions

- 28.1 During the evaluation of bids, the following definitions apply:
 - (a) "Deviation" is a departure from the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents;
 - (b) "Reservation" is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents; and
 - (c) "Omission" is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the Bidding Documents

29. Determination of Responsivene ss

- 29.1 The Purchaser's determination of a bid's responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself, as defined in ITB 11.
- 29.2 A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the Bidding Documents without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:
 - (a) if accepted, would
 - (i) affect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Goods and Related Services specified in the Contract; or
 - (ii) limit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Documents, the Purchaser's rights or the Bidder's obligations under the Contract; or
 - (b) if rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.
- 29.3 The Purchaser shall examine the technical aspects of the bid submitted in accordance with ITB 16 and ITB 17, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VII, Schedule of Requirements have been met without any material deviation or reservation, or omission.
- 29.4 If a bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of Bidding Documents, it shall be rejected by the Purchaser and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission.

30. Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions

- 30.1 Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may waive any nonconformities in the Bid.
- 30.2 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or

documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the bid related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.

30.3 Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component by adding the average price of the item or component quoted by substantially responsive Bidders. If the price of the item or component cannot be derived from the price of other substantially responsive Bids, the Purchaser shall use its best estimate.

31. Correction of Arithmetical Errors

- 31.1 Provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:
 - (a) if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the line item total that is obtained by multiplying the unit price by the quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the line item total shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Purchaser there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the line item total as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;
 - (b) if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; and
 - (c) if there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.
- 31.2 Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors. Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB 31.1, shall result in the rejection of the Bid.
- 32. Conversion to Single Currency
- 32.1 For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the Bid shall be converted in a single currency as **specified in the BDS.**
- 33. Margin of Preference
- 33.1 **Unless otherwise specified in the BDS,** a margin of preference shall not apply.

34. Evaluation of Bids

- 34.1 The Purchaser shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Clause. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted.
- 34.2 To evaluate a Bid, the Purchaser shall consider the following:
 - (a) evaluation will be done for Items or Lots (contracts), as **specified in the BDS**; and the Bid Price as quoted in accordance with clause 14;
 - (b) price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 31.1;
 - (c) price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.3;
 - (d) converting the amount resulting from applying (a) to (c) above, if relevant, to a single currency in accordance with ITB 32;
 - (e) price adjustment due to quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities in accordance with ITB 30.3;
 - the additional evaluation factors are specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria;
- 34.3 The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in bid evaluation.
- 34.4 If these Bidding Documents allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated price of the lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Letter of Bid Form, is specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria
- 34.5 The Purchaser's evaluation of a bid will exclude and not take into account:
 - (a) in the case of Goods manufactured in the Purchaser's Country, sales and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the goods if a contract is awarded to the Bidder;
 - (b) in the case of Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported or to be imported, customs duties and other import taxes levied on the imported Good, sales and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder;

- (c) any allowance for price adjustment during the period of execution of the contract, if provided in the bid.
- 34.6 The Purchaser's evaluation of a bid may require the consideration of other factors, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB 14. These factors may be related to the characteristics, performance, and terms and conditions of purchase of the Goods and Related Services. The effect of the factors selected, if any, shall be expressed in monetary terms to facilitate comparison of bids, unless otherwise **specified in the BDS** from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The criteria and methodologies to be used shall be as specified in ITB 34.2 (f).

35. Comparison of Bids

35.1 The Purchaser shall compare the evaluated prices of all substantially responsive bids established in accordance with ITB 34.2 to determine the lowest evaluated bid. The comparison shall be on the basis of CIP (place of final destination) prices for imported goods and EXW prices, plus cost of inland transportation and insurance to place of destination, for goods manufactured within the Borrower's country, together with prices for any required installation, training, commissioning and other services. The evaluation of prices shall not take into account custom duties and other taxes levied on imported goods quoted CIP and sales and similar taxes levied in connection with the sale or delivery of goods.

36. Qualification of the Bidder

- 36.1 The Purchaser shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated and substantially responsive bid meets the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.
- 36.2 The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder's qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17.
- 36.3 Prior to Contract award, the Purchaser will verify that the successful Bidder (including each member of a JV) is not disqualified by the Bank due to noncompliance with contractual SEA/SH prevention and response obligations. The Purchaser will conduct the same verification for each subcontractor proposed by the successful Bidder. If any proposed subcontractor does not meet the requirement, the Purchaser will require the Bidder to propose a replacement subcontractor.
- 36.4 An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the bid, in which event the Purchaser shall

proceed to the next lowest evaluated bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder's qualifications to perform satisfactorily.

- 37. Purchaser's Right to **Accept Any** Bid. and to Reject Any or All Bids
- 37.1 The Purchaser reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all bids submitted and specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders.

F. Award of Contract

- **38. Award Criteria** 38.1 Subject to ITB 37.1, the Purchaser shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose bid has been determined to be the lowest evaluated bid and is substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.
- 39. Purchaser's Right to Vary **Quantities at** Time of Award
- 39.1 At the time the Contract is awarded, the Purchaser reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of Goods and Related Services originally specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements, provided this does not exceed the percentages specified in the BDS, and without any change in the unit prices or other terms and conditions of the bid and the Bidding Documents.
- 40. Notification of Award
- 40.1 Prior to the date of expiry of the Bid validity, the Purchaser shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the "Letter of Acceptance") shall specify the sum that the Purchaser will pay the Supplier in consideration of the supply of Goods (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called "the Contract Price"). At the same time, the Purchaser shall also notify all other Bidders of the results of the bidding and shall publish in *UNDB* online the results identifying the bid and lot (contract) numbers and the following information:
 - name of each Bidder who submitted a Bid:
 - (ii) bid prices as read out at Bid Opening;
 - (iii) name and evaluated prices of each Bid that was evaluated;
 - (iv) name of bidders whose bids were rejected and the reasons for their rejection; and

- (v) name of the successful Bidder, and the Price it offered, as well as the duration and summary scope of the contract awarded.
- 40.2 Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, the notification of award shall constitute a binding Contract.
- 40.3 The Purchaser shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after notification of award in accordance with ITB 40.1, requests in writing the grounds on which its bid was not selected.

41. Signing of Contract

- 41.1 Promptly after notification, the Purchaser shall send the successful Bidder the Contract Agreement.
- 41.2 Within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement, the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return it to the Purchaser.
- 41.3 Notwithstanding ITB 41.2 above, in case signing of the Contract Agreement is prevented by any export restrictions attributable to the Purchaser, to the country of the Purchaser, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, where such export restrictions arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, the Bidder shall not be bound by its bid, always provided however, that the Bidder can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and of the Bank that signing of the Contact Agreement has not been prevented by any lack of diligence on the part of the Bidder in completing any formalities, including applying for permits, authorizations and licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract.

42. Performance Security

- 42.1 Within twenty eight (28) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Purchaser, the successful Bidder, if required, shall furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the GCC, subject to ITB 34.5, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, or another Form acceptable to the Purchaser. If the Performance Security furnished by the successful Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or insurance company that has been determined by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Purchaser. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser's Country.
- 42.2 Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute

sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Purchaser may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder, whose bid is substantially responsive and is determined by the Purchaser to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily.

Section II. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)

The following specific data for the goods to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB.

ITB Clause Reference	A. General	
ITB 1.1	The reference number of the Invitation for Bids is : KE-SDOT-479041-GO-RFB	
ITB 1.1	The Purchaser is: State Department for Transport	
ITB 1.1	The name of the RfB is: Supply and Delivery of ICT Equipment The identification number of the RfB is: KE-SDOT-479041-GO-RFB The number and identification of lots (contracts) comprising this RfB is: Lot 1: Supply & Delivery of 50 Desktop Computers & 50 Ultra Power Supply; 41 Laptops; 11 Printers; 1 I Mac; 2 Smart TVs; 1 Audiovisual Conferencing Equipment; 1 Mac Book Pro; 150 Corporate Anti-Virus; 2 Microsoft Surface Pro; for State Department for Transport Lot 2: Supply and Delivery of 20 Laptops; 50 All-in-one Desktop Computers; 01 Public Address System; 20 Ticketing Handheld Devices and 06 Rugged Handheld Data Capture Devices for the Kenya Railways Corporation	
ITB 2.1	The Borrower is: Republic of Kenya	
ITB 2.1	Loan or Financing Agreement amount: Euro 669,200,000	
ITB 2.1	The name of the Project is: Horn of Africa Gateway Development Project	
ITB 4.1	Maximum number of members in the JV shall be: 03 (Three)	
IITB 4.4	A list of debarred firms and individuals is available on the Bank's external website: http://www.worldbank.org/debarr.	
	B. Contents of Bidding Documents	
ITB 7.1	For <u>Clarification of bid purposes</u> only, the Purchaser's address Attention: Head, Supply Chain Management Address: State Department for Transport, Transcom House, Ngon Road Floor/ Room number: Upper Ground Floor, Room 23 City: Nairobi	

	Country: Kenya	
	Electronic mail address: scms@transport.go.ke	
	Requests for clarification should be received by the Purchaser no later than: 10 Days	
ITB 7.1	Web page: www.transport.go.ke and www.tenders.go.ke	
	C. Preparation of Bids	
ITB 10.1	The language of the bid is: English	
	All correspondence exchange shall be in English language.	
	Language for translation of supporting documents and printed literature is English	
ITB 11.1 (j)	The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its bid:	
	 i) Bill of Lading (where applicable) ii) Consignment note (as applicable) iii) Delivery Notes iv) Invoices v) Import Clearances (as applicable) 	
	` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` ` `	
ITB 13.1	Alternative Bids shall not be considered.	
ITB 14.5	The prices quoted by the Bidder shall not be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract.	
ITB 14.6	Prices quoted for each lot (contract) shall correspond at least to 100 percent of the items specified for each lot (contract).	
	Prices quoted for each item of a lot shall correspond at least to 100 percent of the quantities specified for this item of a lot.	
ITB 14.7	The Incoterms edition is: 2020	
ITB 14.8 (b) (i) and (c) (v)	Place of Destination: State Department for Transport stores for Lot 1; Kenya Railways stores for Lot 2 respectively	
ITB 14.8 (a) (iii);(b)(ii) and (c)(v)	"Final destination (Project Site)": State Department for Transport for Lot 1; Kenya Railways for Lot 2	
ITB 15.1	The prices shall be quoted by the bidder in: Kenya Shillings	

Section II Bid Data Sheet 31

	The Bidder is required to quote in the currency of the Purchaser's Country the portion of the bid price that corresponds to expenditures incurred in that currency.	
ITB 16.4	Period of time the Goods are expected to be functioning (for the purpose of spare parts): 1 (One) Year	
ITB 17.2 (a)	Manufacturer's authorization is: Required (as defined herein)	
ITB 17.2 (b)	After sales service is: Required (as applicable)	
ITB 18.1	The bid shall be valid until: 10 th July, 2025	
ITB 18.3 (a)	The bid price shall be adjusted by the following factor(s): 0.05%	
ITB 19.1	A Bid Security shall be required. A Bid-Securing Declaration shall be required for the youth, women and PLWDs who choose to participate.	
	If a bid security shall be required, the amount and currency of the bid security shall be KES 199,075.50 for Lot 1 and KES 483,424.50	
ITB 19.3 (d)	Other types of acceptable securities: None	
ITB 20.1	In addition to the original of the bid, the number of copies is: 01 (One)	
ITB 20.2	The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of: Power of Attorney	
	D. Submission and Opening of Bids	
ITB 22.1	For <u>bid submission purposes</u> only, the Purchaser's address is: Attention: <u>Head</u> , <u>Supply Chain Management</u> Street Address: <u>Transcom House</u> , <u>Ngong' Road</u> Floor/ Room number: <u>Upper Ground Floor</u> , <u>Room 23</u> City: <u>Nairobi</u> Postal Code: <u>00200</u> Country: <u>Kenya</u> The deadline for bid submission is: Date: <u>28th May</u> , <u>2025</u> Time: <u>1100 Hours</u> Bidders <u>shall</u> <u>not</u> have the option of submitting their bids electronically.	
ITB 25.1	The bid opening shall take place at: Street Address: Ngong' Road Floor/ Room number: Accounts Boardroom City: Nairobi Country: Kenya	

	Date: 28 th May, 2025 Time: 1100 Hours		
ITB 25.3	The Letter of Bid and Price Schedules shall be initialed by all appointed representatives of the Purchaser conducting Bid opening. Each Bid shall be initialed by all representatives and shall be numbered, any modification to the unit or total price shall be initialed by the Representative of the Purchaser		
	E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids		
ITB 32.1	The currency that shall be used for bid evaluation and comparison purposes to convert all bid prices expressed in various currencies into a single currency is: Kenya Shillings The source of exchange rate shall be: The Central Bank of Kenya The date for the exchange rate shall be: 15th April, 2025		
ITB 33.1	[The following provision should be included and the required corresponding information inserted only if the Procurement Plan authorizes the application of margin of preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference applies of the procurement of preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference applies of the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference applies of the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference applies of the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract. Other is the preference and the Purchaser intends to apply it to the subject contract.		

Section II Bid Data Sheet 33

ITB 34.2(a)	Evaluation v	will be done for Lots(contracts)					
	listed include Price and avera bidde	Note: Bids will be evaluated lot by lot. If a Price Schedule shows items listed but not priced, their prices shall be assumed to be included in the prices of other items. An item not listed in the Price Schedule shall be assumed to be not included in the bid, and provided that the bid is substantially responsive, the average price of the item quoted by substantially responsive bidders will be added to the bid price and the equivalent total cost of the bid so determined will be used for price comparison.					
ITB 34.6		The adjustments shall be determined using the following criteria, from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria:					
	(a)	Deviation in Delivery schedule: No.					
	(b)	Deviation in payment schedule: No.					
	(c)	the cost of major replacement components, mandatory spare parts, and service: No					
	(d)	the availability in the Purchaser's Country of spare parts and after-sales services for the equipment offered in the bid No					
	(e)	the projected operating and maintenance costs during the life of the equipment No					
	(f)	the performance and productivity of the equipment offered; No					
	(g)	Specific additional criteria (Refer Section III: Evaluation and Qualification Criteria)					
		F. Award of Contract					
ITB 39.1	The maximu	um percentage by which quantities may be increased is:					
	The maximu	um percentage by which quantities may be decreased is:					

Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

Contents

1. Margin of Preference (ITB 33)	36
2. Evaluation (ITB 34)	. 37
3. Qualification (ITB 36)	41

1. Margin of Preference (ITB 33)

If the Bidding Data Sheet so specifies, the Purchaser will grant a margin of preference to goods manufactured in the Purchaser's country for the purpose of bid comparison, in accordance with the procedures outlined in subsequent paragraphs.

Bids will be classified in one of three groups, as follows:

- (a) **Group A:** Bids offering goods manufactured in the Purchaser's Country, for which (i) labor, raw materials, and components from within the Purchaser's Country account for more than thirty (30) percent of the EXW price; are the production facility in which they will be manufactured or assemined been engaged in manufacturing or assembling such goods at least since the ce of bid submission.
- (b) **Group B:** All other bids offering Goods manufactured in the Purchaser's Country.
- (c) **Group C:** Bids offering Goods not the Justide the Purchaser's Country that have been already imposed of at will be imported.

To facilitate this classification by the Puncase, the Bidder shall complete whichever version of the Price Schedule fur and the Bidding Documents is appropriate provided, however, that the completion of a correct version of the Price Schedule by the Bidder shall not represent the price of the Price Schedule by the Bidder shall not represent the price of the Price Schedule by the Bidder shall not represent the price of the Price Schedule by the Bidder shall not represent the price of the Price Schedule by the Bidder shall not represent the price of the Price Schedule by the Bidder shall not represent the price of the Price Schedule by the Bidder shall not represent the price of the Price Schedule by the Bidder shall not represent the Bidder shall

The Purchaser with rst review the bids to confirm the appropriateness of, and to modify as necessar, group classification to which bidders assigned their bids in preparit. the Bi Forms and Price Schedules.

All eval d bids in each group will then be compared to determine the lowest eval ated bid of each group. Such lowest evaluated bids shall be compared with each other and if as a result of this comparison a bid from Group A or Group B is the lowest, it shall be selected for the award.

If as a result of the preceding comparison, the lowest evaluated bid is a bid from Group C, all bids from Group C shall be further compared with the lowest evaluated bid from Group A after adding to the evaluated price of goods offered in each bid from Group C, for the purpose of this further comparison only, an amount equal to 15% (fifteen percent) of the respective CIP bid price for goods to be imported and already imported goods. Both prices shall include unconditional discounts and be corrected for arithmetical errors. If the bid from Group A is the lowest, it shall be selected for award. If not, the lowest evaluated bid from Group C shall be selected as paragraph above."

2. Evaluation (ITB 34)

2.1. Evaluation Criteria (ITB 34.6)

The Purchaser's evaluation of a bid may take into account, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB Clause 14.8, one or more of the following factors as specified in ITB 34.2(f) and in BDS referring to ITB 34.6, using the following criteria and methodologies.

(a) Delivery schedule. (as per Incoterms specified in the BDS)

The Goods specified in the List of Goods are required to be delivered within the acceptable time range (after the earliest and before the final date, both dates inclusive) specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. No credit will be given to deliveries before the earliest date, and bids offering delivery after the final date shall be treated as nonresponsive.

(b) Deviation in payment schedule.

The SCC stipulates the payment schedule specified by the Purchaser. If a bid deviates from the schedule and if such deviation is considered acceptable to the Purchaser, the bid will be evaluated by calculating interest earned for any earlier payments involved in the terms outlined in the bid as compared with those stipulated in the series, at the rate per annum specified in BDS 34.6.

(c) Cost of major replacement composite Landatory spare parts, and service.

The list of iter and contities of major assemblies, components, and selected share parts, likely to be required during the initial period of operation specified in the BDS 16.4, is in the List of Goods. An adjustment equal to the total cost of these items, at the unit prices quoted in each bid, shall be added to the bid price, for evaluation purposes only.

(d) Availability in the Purchaser's Country of spare parts and after sales services for equipment offered in the bid.

An adjustment equal to the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the Purity of establishing the minimum service facilities and parts in the cost to the cost of establishing the co

(e) Projected operating a value nance costs.

Operating and maintenance costs. An adjustment to take into account the operating and maintenance costs of the Goods will be added to the bid price, for evaluation purposes only, if specified in BDS 34.6. The adjustment will be evaluated in accordance with the methodology specified in the BDS 34.6.

- (f) Performance and productivity of the equipment.
 - An adjustment to take into account the productivity of the goods offered in the bid where the bid to be actual productivity of goods offered in the bid with respect to minimum required values, using the methodology specified in BDS 34.6.
- (g) Specific additional criteria
 - 1. Preliminary examination to determine Tenderer eligibility:
- i) Power of Attorney The bidder <u>SHALL</u> provide a Power Attorney duly signed by the majority shareholder in its <u>LETTERHEAD</u> indicating their contacts. This <u>MUST</u> be accompanied by an acceptance from the appointed person
- ii) Bidder Information Form <u>MUST</u> be completed in the format provided. Any italicized information <u>MUST</u> not be included. All information required <u>MUST</u> be provided. Any deviation <u>SHALL</u> render the bid non responsive
- iii) Letter of Bid <u>MUST</u> be completed in the format provided. All required information <u>SHALL</u> be provided. All italicized information <u>MUST</u> not be included. Any deviation <u>SHALL</u> render the bid non responsive
- iv) Duly Filled Form of Bid The required information MUST be provided in the spaces indicated. Any writing in italics should all be deleted from the final document. MUST be signed by the person with the Power of Attorney. All the other forms to be filled herein SHALL follow the same requirement.
- v) ICTA Certifications Each bidder must provide the certificates as provided by the department. It should be valid and MUST meet requirements as indicated under Certificate of Registration/Incorporation, herein under.
- vi) Submission of the Document The document MUST be paginated using paging machine and NOT free-hands. When providing the information as required in the document, all bidders are called upon to ensure that original pages are maintained but copies are made, information provided and attached alongside the original page. For example, when filling the Bid Form, make a copy of the original, retain the original in its state, provide information on the copy and attach the copy alongside the original. Any bid not adhering to this SHALL be deemed non responsive. All the other forms to be filled herein SHALL follow the same requirement. The structure of the document must be retained
- vii) Certificate of Registration/Incorporation Each bidder MUST present a clear document of either of the two documents or proof of the same. Failure to do so would

render the bid non-responsive. The reproduction should ensure the document is clear and readable without reading aid. **MUST** clearly show the name of the business, date of Registration/Incorporation and the Certificate Number

- viii) Valid Tax Compliance Certificate MUST be valid beyond the closing date of the bidding period. Any deviation from the requirement SHALL be considered non responsive. A bid with this document expiring on the day of closure of the bidding period or any other time thereof before signing the Contract shall, if successful, be required to provide a valid copy before signing the Contract; failure of which will lead to disqualification of the bid and the next lowest bid may be considered
- ix) Bid Security (Bid Bond) All firms must provide this document in the format provided herein. Any deviation <u>SHALL</u> be considered non-responsive and the bid <u>SHALL</u> be disqualified. It must be in the amount as indicated and valid for 30 days after the date of submission. For the youths, women and PLWDs, provide a Bid Securing Declaration Form

Note: Any bid failing this section SHALL not be considered any further

2. Technical examination;

x)

- a) Eligibility and Compliance of Goods To determine goods eligibility, compliance with technical specifications and commercial responsiveness, comparison will be done between the specifications provided in this document against what is provided by the bidder. Documentary evidence described herein under, shall also be taken into consideration.
- b) Documentary Evidence The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence to demonstrate that the goods it offers meet the usage requirement as indicated;
- c) Manufacturing Experience and Technical Capacity For the items under the Contract that the bidder is a manufacturer, the Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence to demonstrate that:
 - 1. It has manufactured goods of similar nature and complexity for at least three (3) years, prior to the bid submission deadline; and
 - 2. Its annual production capacity of goods of similar nature and complexity for each of the last three (3) years prior to the bid submission deadline, is at least 10,000 (ten thousand) times the quantities specified under the contract.
- d) **Manufacturer's authorization**: A Bidder who does not manufacture an item/s where a manufacturer authorization is

required, shall provide evidence of being duly authorized by a manufacturer (Manufacturer's Authorization Form,), meeting the criteria in (c) (1) and (2) above, to supply the Goods;

e) A bidder who does not manufacture an item/s where a manufacturer authorization is required. shall documentation on, its status as a supplier, to the satisfaction of the Purchaser (e.g. authorized dealer/ distributor of the items).

Note: Bids failing this stage SHALL not be considered any further

- 3. Financial comparison of quotations;
- a) To determine the lowest evaluated quotation, the line figures **SHALL** be multiplied against the quantity to confirm amount; the amounts SHALL be summed up to confirm the totals. Any deviations realized SHALL be noted and if considered major, SHALL lead to the rejection of the bid. Where the amount in figures differs from the amount in words, the amount in words **SHALL** prevail

Note: Lowest bid does not translate to automatic win 2.2. Multiple Contracts (ITB 34.4)

The Purchaser shall award multiple contracts to the Bidder that offers the lowest evaluated combination of bids (one contract per bid) and meets the post-qualification criteria (this Section III, Sub-Section ITB 36.1 Post-Qual icaron Requirements)

The Purchaser shall:

- (a) evaluate only lots or contracts that include at least the percentages of items per lot and quantity per itemper pecified in ITB 14.8
- (b) take into account
 - waluated bid for each lot and (i)
 - the price reduction per lot and the methodology for its application as (ii) offered by the Bidder in its bid"

2.3. Alternative Bids (ITB 13.1)

An alternative if permitted under ITB 13.1, will be evaluated as follows:

[insert one of the following]

"A bidder may submit an alternative bid only with the base case. The Purchaser shall only consider the alternative offered by the Bidder whose bid for the base case was determined to be lowest-evaluated bid." Not App

or

"A bidder may submit an alternative bid with or without a bid for the base case. The Purchaser shall consider bids offered for alternatives as specified in the Technical Specifications of Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. All bids received, for the base case, as well as alternative bids meeting the specified requirements, shall be evaluated on their own merits in accordance with the same procedures, as specified in the ITB 34."

3. Qualification (ITB 36)

3.1 Post qualification Requirements (ITB 36.1)

After determining the lowest-evaluated bid in accordance with ITB 35.1, the Purchaser shall carry out the post qualification of the Bidder in accordance with ITB 36, using only the requirements specified. Requirements not included in the text below shall not be used in the evaluation of the Bidder's qualifications.

- (a) Financial Capability: The Bidder shall submit audited financial statements for the last three years (3) years 2021, 2022 and 2023 prior to bid submission deadline, demonstrating the current soundness of the Bidder's financial position (which MUST be signed by a Certified Public Accountant) accompanied with duly stamped bank statements of six (6) months immediately preceding the deadline for submission. The stamp by the bank MUST be in original form. For a joint venture, this requirement SHALL be met by each member;
- (b) Specific Experience: The Bidder shall demonstrate that it has successfully completed at least two (2) contracts within the last 3 (Three) years prior to bid submission deadline, each with a value of at least KES 5,000,000/= that have been successfully and substantially completed and that are similar in nature and complexity to the Goods and Related Services under the Contract. For a joint venture, this requirement may be met by all members combined.

At the time of Contract Award, the Bidder (including each subcontractor proposed by the Bidder) shall not be subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations.

Section IV. Bidding Forms

Table of Forms

_etter of Bid	44
Bidder Information Form	47
Bidder's JV Members Information Form	48
Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment Performan	
Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, to mported	
Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported*	53
Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured in the Purchaser's Country	55
Price and Completion Schedule - Related Services	57
Form of Bid Security	58
Form of Bid Security (Bid Bond)	60
Form of Bid-Securing Declaration	61
Manufacturer's Authorization	62

Letter of Bid

The Bidder must prepare the Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder's complete name and address.

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing these form and shall be deleted from the final products.

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]

ICB No.: [insert number of bidding process]
Invitation for Bid No.: [insert identification]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [insert complete name of Purchaser]

- (a) We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including Addenda issued in accordance with Instructions to Bidders (ITB 8)____;
- (b) We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4;
- (c) We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Purchaser based on execution of a Bid Securing Declaration in the Purchaser's country in accordance with ITB 4.6
- (d) Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment (SH): [select the appropriate option from (i) to (iii) below and delete the others. In case of JV members and/or subcontractors, indicate the status of disqualification by the Bank of each JV member and/or subcontractor].

We, including any of our subcontractors:

- (i) [have not been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations.]
- (ii) [are subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations.]
- (iii) [had been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations, and were removed from the disqualification list. An arbitral award on the disqualification case has been made in our favor.]
- (e) We offer to supply in conformity with the Bidding Documents and in accordance with the Delivery Schedules specified in the Schedule of Requirements the following Goods: [insert a brief description of the Goods and Related Services];
- (f) The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (f) below is:

In case of only one lot, total price of the Bid [insert the total price of the bid in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies];

In case of multiple lots, total price of each lot [insert the total price of each lot in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies];

In case of multiple lots, total price of all lots (sum of all lots) [insert the total price of all lots in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies];

- (g) The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:
 - (i) The <u>discounts offered are: [Specify in detail each discount offered.]</u>
 - (ii) The exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts is shown below: [Specify in detail the method that shall be used to apply the discounts];
- (h) Our bid shall be valid until [insert day, month and year in accordance with ITB 18.1], and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
- (i) If our bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with the Bidding Documents;
- (j) We are not participating, as a Bidder or as a subcontractor, in more than one bid in this bidding process in accordance with ITB 4.2(e), other than alternative bids submitted in accordance with ITB 13;
- (k) We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by a member of the World Bank Group or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group in accordance with the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions between the World Bank and other development banks. Further, we are not ineligible under the Purchaser's country laws or official regulations or pursuant to a decision of the United Nations Security Council;
- (I) We are not a government owned entity/ We are a government owned entity but meet the requirements of ITB 4.5;
- (m) We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract: [insert complete name of each Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity]

Name of Recipient	Address	Reason	Amount	

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate "none.")

- (n) We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed; and
- (o) We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any other bid that you may receive.
- (p) We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf will engage in any type of fraud and corruption

Name of the Bidder* [insert complete name of the Bidder]

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder** [insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]

Title of the person signing the Bid [insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]

Signature of the person named above [insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above]

Date signed _[insert date of signing] day of [insert month], [insert year]

- *: In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder
- **: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid Schedules.

Bidder Information Form

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]

ICB No.: [insert number of bidding process]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

Page ______ of _____ pages

1. Bidder's Name [insert Bidder's legal name]

- Bidder's Name [insert Bidder's legal name]
 In case of JV, legal name of each member: [insert legal name of each member in JV]
 Bidder's actual or intended country of registration: [insert actual or intended country of registration]
 Bidder's year of registration: [insert Bidder's year of registration]
 Bidder's Address in country of registration: [insert Bidder's legal address in country of registration]
 Bidder's Authorized Representative Information
 Name: [insert Authorized Representative's name]
 Address: [insert Authorized Representative's Address]
 Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert Authorized Representative's telephone/fax numbers]
 - 7. Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached original documents]
 - ☐ Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.3.
 - ☐ In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1.
 - ☐ In case of Government-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.5 documents establishing:
 - Legal and financial autonomy
 - Operation under commercial law
 - Establishing that the Bidder is not dependent agency of the Purchaser

Email Address: [insert Authorized Representative's email address]

2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.

Bidder's JV Members Information Form

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture].

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission] ICB No.: [insert number of bidding process] Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative] Page of pages 1. Bidder's Name: [insert Bidder's legal name] 2. Bidder's JV Member's name: [insert JV's Member legal name] 3. Bidder's JV Member's country of registration: finsert JV's Member country of registration] 4. Bidder's JV Member's year of registration: [insert JV's Member year of registration] 5. Bidder's JV Member's legal address in country of registration: [insert JV's Member legal address in country of registration] 6. Bidder's JV Member's authorized representative information Name: [insert name of JV's Member authorized representative] Address: [insert address of JV's Member authorized representative] Telephone/Fax numbers: [insert telephone/fax numbers of JV's Member authorized representative] Email Address: [insert email address of JV's Member authorized representative] Attached are copies of original documents of [check the box(es) of the attached 7. original documents] Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association). and/or registration documents of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.3. ☐ In case of a Government-owned enterprise or institution, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy, operation in accordance with commercial law, and absence of dependent status, in accordance with ITB 4.5. 2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership.

Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment Performance Declaration

[The following table shall be filled in by the Bidder, each member of a Joint Venture and each subcontractor proposed by the Bidder]

Bidder's Name: [insert full name]
Date: [insert day, month, year]
Joint Venture Member's or Subcontractor's Name: [insert full name]
ICB No. and title: [insert ICB number and title]
Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

SEA and/or SH Declaration
in accordance with Section III, Qualification Criteria, and Requirements
We:
 □ (a) have not been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations
$\hfill \Box$ (b) are subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations
(c) had been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations, and were removed from the disqualification list. An arbitral award on the disqualification case has been made in our favor.
[If (c) above is applicable, attach evidence of an arbitral award reversing the findings on the issues underlying the disqualification.]

Price Schedule Forms

[The Bidder shall fill in these Price Schedule Forms in accordance with the instructions indicated. The list of line items in column 1 of the **Price Schedules** shall coincide with the List of Goods and Related Services specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements.]

Section IV Bidding Forms 51

Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, to be Imported

		(Group C Currencie	Date: RfB No: of					
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9
Line Item N°	Description of Goods	Country of Origin	Delivery Date as defined by Incoterms	Quantity and physical unit	Unit price CIP [insert place of destination] in accordance with ITB 14.8(b)(i)	CIP Price per line item (Col. 5x6)	Price per line item for inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's country to convey the Goods to their final destination specified in BDS	Total Price per Line item (Col. 7+8)
					Lot 1			
1	Desktop Computer			50				
2	Ultra Power Supply 1.5 KVA			50				
3	Smart Television			02				
4	Shredder			02				
5	Heavy Duty Printer			02				
6	Medium Duty Printer			09				
7	Laptop			41				
8	Corporate Anti- Virus			150				
9	IMac			01				
10	Mac Book Pro			01				
11	Microsoft Surface Pro			02				
12	Audio Visual Conferencing Equipment			01				
					Lot 2			

1	Laptop	20		
2	All – in One Desktop Computer	50		
3	Public Address System	01		
4	Ticketing Hand Held Devices	20		
5	Rugged Hand Held Data Capture Devices	06		

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [Insert Date]

Section IV Bidding Forms 53

Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured Outside the Purchaser's Country, already imported* (Group C bids, Goods already imported) Date: RfB No: Currencies in accordance with ITB 15 Page N° _____ of _ 2 5 6 7 9 10 11 12 4 Description of Delivery Unit price **Custom Duties** Unit Price Price per line Price per line item for Sales and Total Price per line Line Country of Quantity Goods Origin including inland transportation Date as and Import net of custom item net of other taxes item Item and defined by physical Custom Taxes paid per duties and **Custom Duties** and other services paid or payable (Col. 9+10) Ν° Incoterms unit **Duties** and unit in import taxes, and Import required in the per item if Purchaser's country to Contract is Import Taxes accordance with in accordance Taxes paid, in convey the goods to with ITB 148 accordance awarded (in paid, in ITB 14.8(c)(ii), accordance [to be supported (c) (iii) with ITB their final destination, accordance as specified in BDS in with ITB by documents] (Col. 6 minus 14.8(c)(i) with ITB 14.8(c)(i) Col.7) (Col. 5×8) accordance with ITB 14.8(c)(iv) 14.8 (c)(v) Lot 1 Desktop 50 Computer Ultra Power 2 Supply 1.5 50 KVA 3 Smart 02 Television Shredder 02 Heavy Duty 5 02 Printer Medium Duty 09 Printer Laptop 41 Corporate Anti-8 150 Virus IMac 01 10 Mac Book Pro 01 11 Microsoft 02 Surface Pro

	T										
12	Audio Visual Conferencing Equipment		01								
	Lot 2										
1	Laptop		20								
2	All – in One Desktop Computer		50								
3	Public Address System		01								
4	Ticketing Hand Held Devices		20								
5	Rugged Hand Held Data Capture Devices		06								
	•	•		•	•		•	•	Total Bid Price		

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [insert date]

^{* [}For previously imported Goods, the quoted price shall be distinguishable from the original import value of these Goods declared to customs and shall include any rebate or mark-up of the local agent or representative and all local costs except import duties and taxes, which have been and/or have to be paid by the Purchaser. For clarity the bidders are asked to quote the price including import duties, and additionally to provide the import duties and the price net of import duties which is the difference of those values.]

Price Schedule: Goods Manufactured in the Purchaser's Country

Purchaser's Country				(Gro	Date: ICB No: Page N° of					
		-	Currencies in accordance with ITB 15 ICB No:							
								Page N° of		
1	2	3	4	5	6	7	8	9	10	
Line Item N°	Description of Goods	Delivery Date as defined by Incoterms	Quantity and physical unit	Unit price EXW	Total EXW price per line item (Col. 4×5)	Price per line item for inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's Country to convey the Goods to their final destination	Cost of local labor, raw materials and components from with origin in the Purchaser's Country % of Col. 5	Sales and other taxes payable per line item if Contract is awarded (in accordance with ITB 14.8(a)(ii)	Total Price per line item (Col. 6+7)	
			_		Lot	1				
1	Desktop Computer		50							
2	Ultra Power Supply 1.5 KVA		50							
3	Smart Television		02							
4	Shredder		02							
5	Heavy Duty Printer		02							
6	Medium Duty Printer		09							
7	Laptop		41							
8	Corporate Anti-Virus		150							
9	IMac		01							
10	Mac Book Pro		01							
11	Microsoft Surface Pro		02							
12	Audio Visual Conferencing Equipment		01							
					Lot	2				

1	Laptop		20					
2	All – in One Desktop Computer		50					
3	Public Address System		01					
4	Ticketing Hand Held Devices		20					
5	Rugged Hand Held Data Capture Devices		06					
						Total Bid Price		

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [insert date]

Price and Completion Schedule - Related Services

				Date:		
		Currencies in accordance with ITB 15		ICB No:Alternative No:		
					Page N°	of
1	2	3	4	5	6	7
Service N°	Description of Services (excludes inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser's country to convey the goods to their final destination)	Country of Origin	Delivery Date at place of Final destination	Quantity and physical unit	Unit price	Total Price per Service (Col. 5*6 or estimate)
				Total Bid Price		

Name of Bidder [insert complete name of Bidder] Signature of Bidder [signature of person signing the Bid] Date [insert date]

Form of Bid Security

(Bank Guarantee)

[The bank shall fill in this Bank Guarantee Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

[Gua	arantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]
Ben	eficiary: [Purchaser to insert its name and address]
IFB	No.: [Purchaser to insert reference number for the Invitation for Bids]
Alte	rnative No.: [Insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]
Date	e: [Insert date of issue]
BID	GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]
	rantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the rhead]
<i>a joi</i> pros has	nave been informed that [insert name of the Bidder, which in the case of int venture shall be the name of the joint venture (whether legally constituted or pective) or the names of all members thereof] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") submitted or will submit to the Beneficiary its bid (hereinafter called "the Bid") for execution of under Invitation for Bids No ("the bull).
	nermore, we understand that, according to the Beneficiary's conditions, bids must upported by a bid guarantee.
the E (by th	e request of the Applicant, we, as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of
(a)	has withdrawn its Bid prior to the Bid validity expiry date set forth in the Applicant's Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Applicant; or
(b)	having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Beneficiary prior to the expiry date of the Bid validity or any extension thereof provided by the Applicant

has failed to: (i) sign the contract agreement, or (ii) furnish the performance

security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB") of the Beneficiary's bidding document.

This guarantee will expire: (a) if the Applicant is the successful bidder, upon our receipt of copies of the contract agreement signed by the Applicant and the performance security issued to the Beneficiary in relation to such contract agreement; or (b) if the Applicant is not the successful bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of a copy of the Beneficiary's notification to the Applicant of the results of the bidding process; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiry date of the Bid validity.

Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at the office indicated above on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to	the Uniform Rules 1	for Demand Guarar	itees (URDG)
2010 Revision, ICC Publica	ition No. 758.		

[Signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

Form of Bid Security (Bid Bond)

[The Surety shall fill in this Bid Bond Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]
BOND NO
BY THIS BOND [name of Bidder] as Principal (hereinafter called "the Principal"), and [name legal title, and address of surety], authorized to transact business in [name of country of Purchaser], as Surety (hereinafter called "the Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto [name of Purchaser] as Obligee (hereinafter called "the Purchaser") in the sum of [amount of Bond] [amount in words], for the payment of which sum, well and truly to be made, we, the said Principal and Surety, bind ourselves, our successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.
WHEREAS the Principal has submitted or will submit a written Bid to the Purchaser dated the day of, 20, for the supply of <i>[name of Contract]</i> (hereinafter called the "Bid").
NOW, THEREFORE, THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that if the Principal:
(a) withdraws its Bid prior to the Bid validity expiry date set forth in the Principal's Letter of Bid, or any extended date provided by the Principal; or
(b) having been notified of the acceptance of its Bid by the Purchaser prior to the expiry date of the Bid validity or any extension thereto provided by the Principal has failed to (i) execute the Contract agreement; or (ii) furnish the Performance Security, in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders ("ITB") of the Purchaser's bidding document.
then the Surety undertakes to immediately pay to the Purchaser up to the above amount upor receipt of the Purchaser's first written demand, without the Purchaser having to substantiate its demand, provided that in its demand the Purchaser shall state that the demand arises from the occurrence of any of the above events, specifying which event(s) has occurred.
The Surety hereby agrees that its obligation will remain in full force and effect up to and including the date 28 days after the date of expiry of the Bid validity set forth in the Principal's Letter of Bid or any extension thereto provided by the Principal.
IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, the Principal and the Surety have caused these presents to be executed in their respective names this day of 20
Principal: Surety: Corporate Seal (where appropriate)
(Signature) (Signature) (Printed name and title) (Printed name and title)

The amount of the Bond shall be denominated in the currency of the Purchaser's country or the equivalent amount in a freely convertible currency.

Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]

Date: [date (as day, month and year)]
Bid No.: [number of bidding process]

Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [complete name of Purchaser]

We, the undersigned, declare that:

We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for bidding in any contract with the Purchaser for the period of time specified in Section II – Bid Data Sheet, if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because we:

- (a) have withdrawn our Bid prior to the expiry date of the Bid validity specified in the Letter of Bid or any extended date provided by us; or
- (b) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Purchaser prior to the expiry date of the Bid validity in the Letter of Bid or any extended date provided by us, (i) fail or refuse to sign the Contract; or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, if required, in accordance with the ITB.

We understand this Bid Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiry date of the Bid validity.

Name of the Bidder*				
Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder**				
Title of the person signing the Bid				
Signature of the person named above				
Date signed	day of			

[Note: In case of a Joint Venture, the Bid-Securing Declaration must be in the name of all members to the Joint Venture that submits the bid.]

^{*:} In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder

^{**:} Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder attached to the Bid

Manufacturer's Authorization

[The Bidder shall require the Manufacturer to fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated. This letter of authorization should be on the letterhead of the Manufacturer and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Manufacturer. The Bidder shall include it in its bid, if so indicated in the **BDS.**]

Date: [insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]
ICB No.: [insert number of bidding process]
Alternative No.: [insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]

To: [insert complete name of Purchaser]

WHEREAS

We [insert complete name of Manufacturer], who are official manufacturers of [insert type of goods manufactured], having factories at [insert full address of Manufacturer's factories], do hereby authorize [insert complete name of Bidder] to submit a bid the purpose of which is to provide the following Goods, manufactured by us [insert name and or brief description of the Goods], and to subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract.

We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty in accordance with Clause 28 of the General Conditions of Contract, with respect to the Goods offered by the above firm.

We confirm that we do not engage or employ forced labor or persons subject to trafficking or child labor, in accordance with Clause 14 of the General Conditions of Contract.

Signed: [insert si	gnature(s) of authorized re	presentative(s) of the Manufacturer]
Name: [insert col	mplete name(s) of authoriz	red representative(s) of the Manufacturer
Title: [insert title]		
Dated onsigning]	day of	, [insert date of

Section V. Eligible Countries

Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Non Consulting Services in Bank-Financed Procurement

In reference to ITB 4.7 and 5.1, for the information of the Bidders, at the present time firms, goods and services from the following countries are excluded from this bidding process:

Under ITB 4.7(a) and 5.1: [insert a list of the countries following approval by the Bank to apply the restriction or state "none"].

Under ITB 4.7(b) and 5.1: [insert a list of the countries following approval by the Bank to apply the restriction or state "none"]

Section VI. Bank Policy - Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

Guidelines for Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants by World Bank Borrowers, dated January 2011.

"Fraud and Corruption:

- 1.16 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), bidders, suppliers, contractors and their agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts.² In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;³;
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;⁴
 - (iii) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;⁵
 - (iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;⁶
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is:
 - (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing

_

In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

³ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

⁴ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

⁶ For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

- or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
- (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.16(e) below.
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, subcontractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement or the implementation of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures,⁷ including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (ii) to be a nominated⁸;
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors, and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records, and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank."

A firm or individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract upon: (i) completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, and through the application the World Bank Group corporate administrative procurement sanctions procedures for fraud and corruption; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an ongoing sanctions proceeding. See footnote 14 and paragraph 8 of Appendix 1 of these Guidelines.

A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

PART 2 – Supply Requirements

Section VII. Schedule of Requirements

Contents

1.	List of Goods and Delivery Schedule	71
2.	List of Related Services and Completion Schedule	73
3.	Technical Specifications	. . 7 4
4.	Drawings	114
5.	Inspections and Tests	115

Notes for Preparing the Schedule of Requirements

The Schedule of Requirements shall be included in the bidding documents by the Purchaser, and shall cover, at a minimum, a description of the goods and services to be supplied and the delivery schedule.

The objective of the Schedule of Requirements is to provide sufficient information to enable bidders to prepare their bids efficiently and accurately, in particular, the Price Schedule, for which a form is provided in Section IV. In addition, the Schedule of Requirements, together with the Price Schedule, should serve as a basis in the event of quantity variation at the time of award of contract pursuant to ITB 39.

The date or period for delivery should be carefully specified, taking into account (a) the implications of delivery terms stipulated in the Instructions to Bidders pursuant to the *Incoterms* rules (i.e., EXW, or CIP, FOB, FCA terms—that "delivery" takes place when goods are delivered **to the carriers**), and (b) the date prescribed herein from which the Bidder's delivery obligations start (i.e., notice of award, contract signature, opening or confirmation of the letter of credit).

1. List of Goods and Delivery Schedule

Line			Delivery (as per Incoterms) Date				
Item N°			unit	Site) Destination as specified in BDS	Earliest Delivery Date	Latest Delivery Date	Bidder's offered Delivery date
а	b	С	d	е	f	g	h
1	Desktop Computer	50	Number	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
2	Corporate Anti-Virus	150	"	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
3	Heavy Duty Printer	02	"	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
4	Laptop	41	"	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
5	IMac	01	"	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
6	Mac Book Pro	01	u.	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
7	Medium Duty Printer	09	"	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
8	Shredder	02	"	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
9	Smart Television	02	u.	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
10	Ultra Power Supply 1.5 KVA	50	"	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
11	Visual Audio Conferencing Equipment	01	í.	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
12	Microsoft Surface Pro	02	"	State Department for Transport	13/06/25	25/06/25	
13	Laptop	20	u	Kenya Railways Corporation	20/06/25	30/06/25	
14	All – in One Desktop Computer	50	u	Kenya Railways Corporation	20/06/25	30/06/25	

15	Public Address System	01	Number	Kenya Railways Corporation	20/06/25	30/06/25	
16	Ticketing Hand Held Devices	20	u	Kenya Railways Corporation	20/06/25	30/06/25	
17	Rugged Hand Held Data Capture Devices	06	ű	Kenya Railways Corporation	20/06/25	30/06/25	

2. List of Related Services and Completion Schedule

[This table shall be filled in by the Purchaser. The Required Completion Dates should be realistic, and consistent with the required Goods Delivery Dates (as per Incoterms)]

Service	Description of Service	Quantity ¹	Physical Unit	Place where Services shall be performed	Final Completion Date(s) of Services
[insert Service No]	[insert description of Related Services]	[insert quantity of items to be supplied]	[insert physical unit for the items]	[insert name of the Place]	[insert required Completion Date(s)]

^{1.} If applicable

3. Technical Specifications

i) Desktop Computers



ITEM	REQUIREMENT – Desktop Computer	Bidders Offer
Processor	Minimum 10th Generation Intel Core i7 processor	
Memory	8 GB DDR	
Memory slots	2DIMM	
Storage	1TB Hard drive	
Optical Drive	HP 9.5 mm Slim DVD-Writer	
Display graphics	21.5 inches flat panel LED same brand as CPU 1024x768	
Power subsystem	Input 220-240 VAC Power range 380-450 watts	
Keyboard and pointing device	Wired scroll mouse and keyboard. Mouse pad	
Audio	Stereo Audio Subsystem (built in)	
Communications	Intel I210-T1 PCIe GbE; Intel I219LM GbE; WLAN: Intel® Wi-Fi 6 AX201 (2×2) and Bluetooth 5 combo,	
I/O Interface	Front: 1 headphone/microphone combo 4 SuperSpeed USB Type-A ports Rear: 1 audio-out; 1 power connector; 1 RJ-45;	

	 1 HDMI 1.4; 4 Speed USB Type-A 1 DisplayPort™ 	
Software	Genuine Licenced Office 2016 (Activated) with Licence Key	
Operating System	Genuine Licenced Windows 11 (Activated) with Licence Key	
Anti-virus	Latest antivirus Internet security one year activation	

ii) Laptop



ITEM	Requirement - Laptop	Bidder's Offer
Make	Branded	
Operating System	Genuine Activated Microsoft windows 11 Professional with License Key	
Software	Genuine Activated Microsoft Office 2016 Professional with license key	
Antivirus	Activated Internet Security latest Antivirus with License key	
Processor	Processor Intel® Core™ i7 1355U (13th Generation)	
Memory	16 GB DDR4-3200	
Display graphics	 35.6 cm (14"), FHD (1920 x 1080) Touch screen Intel Iris Graphics 	
Storage	512 GB SSD	
subsystem		
Communication	 Intel® Wi-Fi 6E AX211 (2x2) 	
interface	and Bluetooth.Wireless Network connection	
I/O interface	 1 USB Type-C® 10Gbps signaling rate (USB Power Delivery, DisplayPort™ 1.4, HP Sleep and Charge) 1 USB Type-A 5Gbps signaling rate 1 HDMI 2.1 1 AC smart pin 1 headphone/microphone combo 	
Keyboard and pointing device	QWERTY keyboard with 12 function keys, 4 cursor keys built in pointing device or touch pad. Backlit	
Optical Drive	At least 16x DVD+/- RW/Super Multi drive	
Accessories	Wireless MouseCarrying bag pack1 Type C to HDMI 5 in 1 Hub	•
Audio	Dual inbuilt stereo audio system built in microphone	

Power subsystem	Power management standard to	
	support standby and hibernation 3	
	hours: battery life	
Warranty	One (1) year Manufacturer's	
-	warranty on hardware with repair and	
	/or replace	

iii) Audio Visual Conferencing Equipment

ITEM	REQUIREMENT	Bidder's Offer
Video	HD 1080p Video quality	
	H.264 with Scalable Video	
	Coding (SVC) and UVC 1.5	
	90° Field of view with mechanical	
	260° pan and 130° tilt	
	10x Lossless HD zoom with auto	
	focus	
	Plug-and-play camera setup	
Audio	Full-duplex speakerphone	
	Beam-forming technology with	
	four omni-directional mics	
	Noise reduction technology with	
	Acoustic echo cancelation	
	High bandwidth HD audio	
	Plug-and-play speakerphone	
	setup	
	LCD displays Caller ID and	
	Visual call status indicator	
Connectivity	Compatible with Mac and	
and usage	Windows Operating Systems.	
	Bluetooth wireless technology	
	and Near Field Communication	
	(NFC) technology	
	Tight integration with cloud	
	communication apps	
	Multiple camera mounting	
	options and device setup	
	configurations PTZ – pan, tilt and	
	zoom – software app	

iv) Smart Television



ITEM	Requirement - Smart TV	Bidder's Offer
Screen Size	75"	
Year of Manufacture	2024	
Technology	LCD-LED 4K Smart TV	
TV Style	Flat screen, Flat Panel	
Aspect Ratio	16:9 or 16:10	
Resolution	3,840 x 2,160 Pixels or better	
Picture Engine	UHD Mastering Engine	
DTV Capability	DVB-T (terrestrial digital TV), DVB-C	
	(digital cable TV), DVB-S (satellite	
	TV), DVB-T2 (terrestrial digital TV,	
	2nd gen.), DVB-S2	
Video formats supported	2160p (4K Ultra HD)	
Audio format	Dolby Digital Plus	
Speakers	Two built-in stereo speakers	
Other features	Picture-in-Picture (PIP), Bluetooth,	
	Support for HbbTV	
Inputs supported	Component (1), Composite Video (1),	
	HDMI (3), USB (2), Stereo Audio	
Outputs Supported	Digital optical output (S/PDIF), HDMI.	
	Stereo Audio	
Wall mountable	Yes	
Operating system	Tizen OS	
Wireless network	WiFi	
Ethernet Connection	Enabled	
Energy efficiency class	A+	
Operating Power	215W Max	
consumption		

Manufacturer/Dealer	Proof of manufacturers/dealer	
Support	support is required.	
Installation &	Must be delivered, installed,	
Configuration	configured & commissioned	
Warranty	One (1)Year	

v) I Mac



ITEM	Requirement - Imac	Bidder's Offer
Year of	2023	
Manufacture		
Colour	Space Gray or Silver	
Memory	16GB (two 8GB) of 2666MHz	
	DDR4 memory; four SO-DIMM	
	slots, user accessible	
Processor	3.3GHz 6-core 10th-generation Intel	
	Core i9, Turbo Boost up to 5.0GHz	
Storage	1TB SSD	
Display	5K Retina display	•
	 27-inch (diagonal) 5K Retina 	
	display	
	 5120-by-2880 resolution with 	
	support for one billion colors	
	 500 nits brightness 	
	Wide colour (P3)	
	True Tone technology	
	 Configurable with nano - texture 	
	glass	
Graphics	AMD Radeon Pro 5300 with 4GB of	
	GDDR6 memory	
Video	-1080p FaceTime HD camera	
	-Simultaneously supports full native	
	resolution on the built-in display at 1	
	billion colours	
	-Two 3840-by-2160 (4K UHD)	
	external displays at 60Hz with	
	support for 1 billion colours	

	T =	1
	-Thunderbolt 3 digital video output	
	-Native DisplayPort output over	
	USB-C	
	-Thunderbolt 2, HDMI, DVI, and	
	1	
A 11	VGA output	
Audio	Stereo speakers	
	 Studio-quality three-mic array 	
	with high signal-to-noise ratio and	
	directional beamforming	
	3.5 mm headphone jack	
	 Support for "Hey Siri" 	
I/ a vila a a val a va al	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Keyboard and	Magic Keyboard	•
Trackpad	 Magic Mouse 	
	 Configurable with Magic 	
	Keyboard with Numeric Keypad	
	 Configurable with Magic 	
	Trackpad	
Wireless		
VVII CICSS	802.11ac Wi-Fi wireless networking	
	IEEE 802.11a/b/g/n compatible	
	Bluetooth 5.0 wireless technology	
Camera	1080p FaceTime HD camera	
Audio	Wide stereo sound	•
7 13.3.10	Support for Spatial Audio	
	·	
	when playing music or	
	video with Dolby Atmos on	
	built-in speakers	
	• 3.5 mm headphone jack	
	with advanced support for	
	high-impedance	
	headphones	
	•	
	HDMI port supports	
	multichannel audio output	
Charging and	SDXC card slot	•
Expansion	HDMI port	
	·	
	3.5 mm headphone jack	
	 MagSafe 3 port 	
	 Two Thunderbolt / USB 4 	
	ports	
Operating	Mac OS Monterey	
System	,	
	Voice Control	
Accessibility		
features	• <u>V</u> oiceOver	
	• Zoom	
	 Increase Contrast 	
	Reduce Motion	
	Siri and Dictation	

	Switch ControlClosed CaptionsText to Speech	
Accessories	 iMac with 5K Retina display Magic Keyboard Magic Mouse 2 Power cord Lightning to USB Cable Polishing cloth 	
Software	 Microsoft 365 for Mac fully activated with Licence key Activated latest Internet Security 2020 Antivirus with License key 	•
Warranty	One (1) year Manufacturer's warranty on hardware with repair and /or replace	

vi) Microsoft Surface Pro



ITEM	REQUIREMENT	Bidder's Offer
Year of Manufacture	11 th Edition	
Memory	Minimum 16 GB	
Storage	1 TB Removable 27 solid-state drive (Gen 4 SSD)	
Display	Surface Pro with OLED display: Touchscreen: 11 inch display PixelSense™ Flow display11	
Battery life	Wi-Fi+5G models-connected using cellular Up to 9 hours of active web usage	
Security	Enhanced security with Microsoft Pluton TPM 2.0 Windows 11 Secured-core PC Windows Hello face authentication with Enhanced Sign-in security Microsoft Defender	
Video/Cameras	 Quad HD front-facing Surface Studio Camera 1440p Quad HD camera with ultrawide field of view Windows Studio Effects with automatic framing, creative filters (illustrated, animated, water colour), eye contact, eye contact: teleprompter, portrait blur, and portrait light 	•

Audio	 10MP Ultra HD rear-facing camera Windows Hello face authentication camera Rear camera 10 MP Sensor W stereo speakers with 	
	Dolby® Atmos	
Mics	Dual Studio Mics with voice focus	
Connections (Ports)	2 X USB-C® / USB4® ports with support for: Charging Data transfer DisplayPort 1.4a Surface Thunderbolt™ 4 Dock and other accessories	
Network and connectivity	 Wi-Fi 77 Bluetooth® Wireless 5.4 technology Supports 5G Cellular 4G Gigabit LTE Sim card slot 	•
Pen and accessories compatibility	 Integrated storage and wireless charging for Surface Slim Pen (2nd Edition) with Surface Pro Supports Microsoft Pen Protocol 	•
Software	 Windows 11 Professional fully activated with licence key Microsoft 365 Family fully activated and licenced with licence key Preloaded Xbox app Kaspersky Internet Security 2024 fully activated with licence key 	•
Accessories	Wireless MouseCarrying bagType C to HDMI 5 in 1 Hub	•
Warranty	One (1) year Manufacturer's warranty on hardware with repair and /or replace	

vii) Heavy Duty Printer



Heavy Duty Multifunctional Printer (80+) – Color with Saddle Stitch Finisher		Bidder's Offer
ITEM	REQUIREMENTS	
Make & Model		
Technology:	Laser Colour MFP	
Control panel	10 inch full colour touch panel display	
Duplex copying	Automatic	
Speed	Up to 82PPM B&W & 70 COLOUR A4 per minute/ Up to 41PPM B&W & 35 COLOUR A3 per minute	
	1200 x 1200 dpi (print), 600 x 600 dpi	
Print Resolution	(scan/copy)	
Memory	At least 4.5 GB	
Processer	Dual core 1.2GHz	
Hard Disk	8 GB SSD + 320 GB HDD	
COPY FUNCTIONS		
Continuous copying	1-9999	
Zoom range	25–400% in 1% steps	
Features	Scan-once-copy-many, electronic sort, 2in1, 4in1, image repeat, page numbering, cover mode. booklet copy, interrupt copy, form overlay, margin shift, auto cassette	

	change, Skip blank page, ID copy in Program mode	
Exposure mode: Manual	15 steps	
Integrated	800 Department Codes	
Accounting		
SCAN FUNCTIONS		
Function	Scan to e-mail, Scan to FTP, Scan to SMB, Scan to USB Host, Scan to box, Network TWAIN, WIA/WSD scan	
Speed min	210 images per minute	
Resolution	600 dpi	
File formats	TIFF, PDF, PDF/A, JPEG, Open XPS, Encrypted PDF, High compression PDF	
PRINT FUNCTIONS		
Emulations	PCL 6 (PCL 5e/PCL-XL), PostScript 3 (KPDL 3), PDF Direct Print, XPS/OpenXPS	
Operating systems	All current Windows operating systems, MAC OS X Version 10.5 or higher, Unix, Linux as well as other operating systems on request	
Interfaces	USB 2.0 (Hi-Speed), 4 x USB Host Interface, Gigabit Ethernet (10BaseT/100BaseTX/ 1000BaseT, IPv6, IPv4, IPSec, 802.3az support)	
Trays	5 paper trays including the bypass tray	
Reversing Document Processor – min	250 sheets	
Bypass Tray – min	120 sheets	
Output Tray Capacity - min	4000 sheet	
Staple Finisher	Min. 4,000 sheets A4 & 50 sheet staple capacity	
Max Original size	A3	
Saddle stitch finisher	Min. 4,000 sheets A4 & 50 sheet staple capacity ,Saddle stitch fold position : Center fold	
Punch Module	Paper size A3 to A4 & Holes : up to 4 Holes	

Power	220-240 VAC 50/60 Hz	
Warm up time	50 Seconds max	
First Print/Copy	5/6 seconds or less	
out time		
Toner Life	65,000 Pages B&W and 25,000 Pages	
	on Colour toner	
Safety standards	ISO 9001 quality standard	
Packaging	Toner, Pedestal, Main unit, Paper trays,	
	Power cable, Quick Setup Guide, User	
	manual (CD), Warranty Documents	
Warranty	One (1) Year	
Original detailed and highlighted Brochures MUST be		
	submitted	

viii) Corporate Anti-Virus

Item	Description	Bidder's Offer
Antivirus and Antispyware	Provides proactive protection against all types of online and offline threats and prevents malware spreading to other users.	
Endpoint security management console	Management console to ensures real-time visibility for on-premise and off-premise endpoints, as well as full reporting and security management for all operating systems.	
Mobile Threat Defense	Protect against mobile threats Protect company data on hand-held devices Block unwanted apps MDM for iOS and IpadOS included	
Advanced Machine Learning	Ability to detect advanced, never seen before malware, while having a low impact on performance.	
Server Security	Ability to provide advanced protection to all general servers, network file storage, and multi-purpose servers	
Exploit Blocker	Block attacks specifically designed to evade antivirus detection and eliminates lock screens and ransomware. Protects against attacks on web browsers, PDF readers and other applications, including Java-based software.	
Advanced Memory Scanner	Enables improved detection of persistent malware that employs multiple layers of encryption to conceal its activity.	
Scan While Downloading Files	Decreases scanning time by scanning specific file types –	

	such as archives – during the download process.	
Idle-State Scanning	Ability to perform in-depth scans when computer is not in use to help detect potential inactive threats before they can cause damage.	
Host-Based Intrusion Prevention System (HIPS)	Lets you customize the behaviour of the system in greater detail with focus on behavioural detection. Gives you the option to specify rules for system registry, active processes and programs to fine-tune your security posture.	
Script-Based Attack Protection	Ability to detects attacks by malicious scripts that try to exploit Windows PowerShell. Also detects malicious JavaScripts that can attack via your browser.	
UEFI Scanner	Ability to protect from threats that attack your computer on a deeper level, even before the start of Windows - on systems	
	with the UEFI system interface.	
Small System Footprint	Maintains high performance and extends the lifetime of hardware. Fits any type of system environment. Saves internet bandwidth with extremely small update packages	
Gamer Mode	Ability to automatically switch to silent mode if any program is run in full-screen. System updates and notifications are postponed to save resources for gaming, video, photos or presentations.	
Ransomware Shield	Ability to block malware that tries to lock you out of your personal data and then asks	

	you to pay a 'ransom' to unlock it.	
Webcam Protection	Ability to alert you to any process that unexpectedly try to access your webcam, and lets you block them.	
Firewall	Ability to prevent unauthorized access to your computer and misuse of your personal data.	
Network Attack Protection	In addition to Firewall, automatically protects your computer from malicious network traffic, blocking threats revealed by dangerous traffic patterns.	
Banking & Payment Protection	Features a special secured browser through which you can safely pay online. Automatically protects you on internet banking and while accessing web-based cryptowallets. Encrypts the communication between the keyboard and the browser for safer transactions and notifies you when using the feature on public Wi-Fi. Protects you from keyloggers.	
Botnet Protection	Added layer of security that protects against botnet malware – preventing your computer from being misused for spam and network attacks	
Anti-Phishing	Protects your privacy and assets against attempts by fraudulent websites to acquire sensitive information such as	
	usernames, passwords or banking details, or feed you fake news from seemingly reputable sources. Protects you from homoglyph attacks (replacing characters in links	

	with ones that look similar but are actually different).	
Out-of-Home Network	Alerts you when connecting to an unknown network and prompts you to switch to the Strict Protection mode. Makes your device invisible to other computers connected to the same network.	
Device Control	Ability to prevent unauthorized copying of your private data to an external device. Allows you to block storage media – CDs, DVDs, USB sticks, and disk storage devices. Lets you block devices connecting via Bluetooth, FireWire and serial/parallel ports.	
Antispam	Ability to keep unwanted emails from clogging your mailbox.	
Parental Control	Gives you the option to choose from predefined categories according to the age of your kids. Lets you set a password to protect settings against modification as well as prevent unauthorized product uninstallation.	

ix) Mac Book Pro



ITEM	Requirement - Mac Book Pro	Bidder's Offer
Year of Manufacture	2023	
Colour	Space Gray or Silver	
Memory	16 GB RAM	
Storage	1 TB Hard disk	
Display	 Simultaneously supports full native resolution on the built-in display at 1 billion colours HDMI digital video output: Support for one display with up to 4K resolution at 120Hz (M3) 	•
Video	Formats to include HEVC, H.264, AV1, and ProRes HDR with Dolby Vision, HDR10, and HLG	
Audio	Formats to include AAC, MP3, Apple Lossless, FLAC, Dolby Digital, Dolby Digital Plus, and Dolby Atmos	
Keyboard and Trackpad	 Backlit Keyboard Touch ID Ambient light sensor Force Touch trackpad 	•
Wireless	Wi-FiWi-Fi 6E (802.11ax)6BluetoothBluetooth 5.3	•

Camera	1080p FaceTime HD camera	
Audio	 Wide stereo sound Support for Spatial Audio when playing music or video with Dolby Atmos on built-in speakers 3.5 mm headphone jack with advanced support for high-impedance headphones HDMI port supports multichannel audio output 	•
Charging and Expansion	 SDXC card slot HDMI port 3.5 mm headphone jack MagSafe 3 port Two Thunderbolt / USB 4 ports 	•
Operating System	Mac OS	
Battery and Power	 Up to 22 hours Apple TV app movie playback Up to 15 hours wireless web 70-watt-hour lithium-polymer battery 70W USB-C Power Adapter USB-C to MagSafe 3 Cable Fast-charge capable with 96W USB-C Power Adapter 	•
Chip	Apple M3 chip	
Accessories	 Wireless Mouse Carrying bag pack 1 Type C to HDMI 5 in 1 Hub 	•
Software	 Microsoft 365 for Mac fully activated with Licence key Activated latest Internet Security 2020 Antivirus with License key 	•
Warranty	One (1) year Manufacturer's warranty on hardware with repair and /or replace	

x) Medium Duty Printer



ITEM	REQUIREMENT - Medium Duty Printer	Bidder's Offer
Functions	Print, Scan, Copy, Fax	
Printing	Laser	
Technology		
Colour Type	Colour	
Configuration	4 x Toner (Cyan, Magenta, Yellow and Black)	
Print Resolution	Colour/Black: 600 x 600 dpi	
Duplex Printing	Yes	
Printer Language	HP PCL 5c, HP PCL 6, HP Postscript Level 3 (Emulation), URF	
Print Speed	28 ppm (Black)28 ppm (Colour)	
Monthly Duty Cycle	50,000 Pages	
Media Handling	2 x Input Tray, Output Tray	
Paper Capacity	Input Tray 1: 50 x SheetInput Tray 2: 250 x Sheet	
Scan	Flatbed Scanner with Automatic Document Feeder (ADF)	
Scan Maximum Resolution	1200 x 1200 dpi (Hardware)	
Scan Modes	Color, Grayscale	

Duplex Scanning	Yes	
Scan Paper	ADF: 50 x Sheet	
Capacity		
Copy Speed	19 Copies per minute	
Duplex Copying	Yes	
Inputs/Outputs	RJ11, RJ45, USB-A, USB-B	
Wireless	Wi-Fi	
Wi-Fi	802.11b/g; Single-Band (2.4	
	GHz)	
Direct Printing	Android, Apple AirPrint,	
	Google Cloud Print, HP	
	Smart, HP ePrint, Mopria,	
	USB Port, Wi-Fi Direct	
Internal Memory	512 MB	
OS Compatibility	Windows, mac OS	
Display Size	4.3"	
Display Type	Touchscreen	
Warranty	1 year	

xi) UPS 1.5 KVA



ITEM	REQUIREMENT - UPS 1.5 KVA	Bidder's Offer
Power Rating	980W/1500VA	
Rack Height	2U	
UPS Technology	Line interactive	
Input Voltage Swing	220V to 270 V	
Output Voltage	220V to 240V	
Output Frequency	• 50/60HZ	
Output Waveform	Sine wave	
Design	 Automatic Voltage Regulation Mains Isolation User replaceable batteries Data line surge protection 	
Battery Module	 Run time(up to) 7.4 min at full load Typical recharge time 3 hour(s) Battery Type Maintenance-free sealed Lead-Acid 	

	battery with suspended electrolyte : leak proof • Surge energy rating 480 Joules	
Management	 LED status display with load and battery bar-graphs and On Line; On Battery; Replace Battery and Overload Indicators Alarm when on battery : distinctive low battery alarm : configurable delays 	
Input Connector(s)	1X Power IEC 320 EN 60320 C14	
Output	4X Power IEC 320 EN 60320	
Connectors	C13	
Communication Interface	DB-9,RS-232, USB, Smart Slot	
Cables included	1 Serial cable, 1 USB cable	
Rack mounting kit	Included	
Software	APC Power chute Business edition	
Warranty	Two (2) Years	

xii) Shredder



ITEM	REQUIREMENT - Shredder	Bidder's Offer
Cut Type	Micro shred	
Cut Size	2 x 12mm	
DIN Level - Paper	P-5	
Maximum Run Time (minutes)	25 minutes	
Number Of Users	3-5	
Anti-Jam Technology	100% jam proof	
Advanced Safety	Safe Sense	
Energy Savings	Sleep Mode	
Can Shred	Staples Credit cards Paper Clips CDs/DVDs	
Basket Type	Pull-out Bin	

Material Type	Steel	
Feed Type	Auto Feed	
Sheet capacity	20	
Bin capacity	30 Gallons	
Weight	30 Gallons	
Warranty	1 year	

Lot Two Items

ITEM 1: LAPTOP COMPUTERS

TECHNICAL MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR LAPTOP COMPUTERS



Specification	KR Minimum Requirements	Bidder's Offer
System	X360 2-in-1	
Model	Digital Pen compatible	
Processor	Intel Core i7-13xxxU	
	at least 10 cores	
	Intel UHD Graphics 620	
	13th Gen Intel Core	
Memory	16 GB DDR4-2400	
Graphics	Integrated Intel UHD	
	Graphics 650	
Discrete	Nvidia GeForce 4 GB	
Graphics		
Hard Disk	1 TB SSD	
Network	Wireless: WiFi and	
	Bluetooth	
Display	FHD Screen 1920 X 1080	
	14 or 15.6 inches Touch	
	screen	
Keyboard	Spill-resistant with backlit	
	function	
Audio	Stereo Audio System with	
	integrated internal	
	Speakers	

Mouse	Optical USB Mouse	
Expansion Features	Ports – At least 3 USB (3) USB 3.0 (1) HDMI (1) Headphone/microphone combo jack (1) AC power port (1) USB-C	
VGA	Provide HDMI-VGA Adapter	
Connector	cable	
Camera	HD Camera	
Operating	Licensed Windows 10 Pro	
System	64 Bit (Pre-installed at Factory).	
Software	Licensed MS office 2019 (PRE-INTALLED)	
Colour	Silver	
Warranty	1 Year	
Accessories	 High quality laptop bag (Backpack) USB- C to HDMI / Ethernet/ USB 3.0 adapter Wireless Rechargeable Mouse Digital Pen 	

ITEM 2: DESKTOP COMPUTERS

TECHNICAL $\underline{\text{MINIMUM}}$ SPECIFICATIONS FOR ALL-IN-ONE DESKTOP COMPUTERS



Specification	Minimum Requirements	Bidder's Offer
Processor	Intel® Core™ i7-1255U (up to 4.7 GHz with Intel® Turbo Boost Technology, 12 MB L3 cache, 10 cores, 12 threads)	
Memory	16 GB DDR4-3200	
Graphics	Integrated, Intel® Iris® Xe Graphics Discrete, NVIDIA® GeForce® MX450 (2 GB DDR5 dedicated)	
Hard Disk	1 TB PCle® NVMe™ M.2 SSD	
Network	Integrated 10/100/1000 GbE LAN, Wifi	
Optical Drive	DVD±RW (±R DL) / DVDRAM	
Monitor	LCD Wide 21 inch LED FHD Resolution 1920 X 1080	
Key board	USB Standard US/UK	
Pointing Device	USB Optical Mouse	
OS	Windows 11 Pro 64 Bit (Pre-installed at Factory)	
Application	Microsoft Office Professional pro plus 2019(pre-installed)	
Warranty	1 Year	

ITEM 4: TICKETING HANDHELD DEVICES

TECHNICAL $\underline{\text{MINIMUM}}$ SPECIFICATIONS FOR (20 No) Ticketing handheld devices



Specification	Minimum Requirements	Bidder's Offer
Operating System	Android 5.X	
Processor	4 Core CPU + Secure CPU	
Memory	8GB FLASH, 1GB RAM	
Display	5.5' (720 x 180) Colorful LCD capacitive touchscreen with signature capture functionality	
Printer	High-Speed Thermal Printer Paper Roll Width/Diameter: 58mm/40mm	
Communications	4G LTE/ Wi-Fi / Bluetooth	
Camera	5MP - rear -facing	
Data Capture	1D Barcode scanner (optional) 2MP camera -front-facing (optional)	
Gps Tracking	GPS / BEIDOU / GLONASS	
Card Readers	Magstripe: Triple track, high coercivity, bi-directional Smart Card: EMV & PBOC approved Contactless: NFC 13.56MHz, support ISO14443, Type A/B/C, Mifare Card (optional)	
Card Slots	PSAM: 2 SIM: 1 SD: 1	
Battery	Li-ion 4300mAh	

Power Adapter	input : 100-240V, 50-60HZ Output : 5V/2A	
Multi-Media	Video, Audio	
Physical	L × W × H = 186mm × 82mm × 64mm , 417g	
Device Ports	1 Micro-USB OTG	
Environmental	0°C~50°C (32°F~122°F) Operating Temperature 5%~ 95% Humidity, Non- Condensing -20°C~60°C (- 4°F~158°F) Storage Temperature	
Optional Base	Charging Base / Wi-Fi Base: Wi-Fi, intergrated charging	
Certifications	PCI 4.X , EMV, PayPass, PayWave certified	
Built-In Apps	Payment, Payment Request, MO/TO Payment, Top-up, Register, App Market, Settings, Private Label GiftCard	
Languages	English, German, Bulgarian, Czech, Greek, Spanish,	
	French, Croatian, Italian,	
	Dutch, Portugal, Romanian, Swedish	

ITEM 5: RAGGED HAND HELD DATA CAPTURE DEVICES



TECHNICAL MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR (6 No) Data capture devices

Features	Minimum Requirements	Supplier Response
Operating System	Windows 10 Pro OS or Android -64-bit	
	system	
Memory	4G RAM	
	64G/128GB ROM	
	expandable memory via micro-SD	
Screen Construction	8 - 10.5-inch Screen Size range	
	Resolution FullHD 1920 x 1200 pixels or FullHD 1920 x 1080 pixels	
	Sensitivity- Can be used with Gloves on	
	Screen brightness- not less than 450Nit	
Front and Back Camera	High Resolution Camera 10 MP Wide Angle AF	
Stylus	Active Stylus Pen (Note: not Passive/Capacitive Stylus)	
Fully rugged construction(Without case)	Military Grade Reliability - MIL-STD- 810H/G	
Protection From Weather	IP67/IP68 IP67 industrial-grade protection for water-proof, rain-resistant & dust-proof	
Battery Minimum	Integrated 5000mAH battery for long	
Capacity	lasting in the field	
GPS	Integrated GPS module for positioning without network required	
Connection to Office	WIFI 802.11(a/b/g/n)	
Network	Bluetooth 4.0/5.0	
Cellular Network	3G and 4G (LTE)	

Tablet Case	Heavy Duty Rugged Shockproof Drop Protection Case with,	
	1. 360 Stand,	
	2. Handle Hand Strap &	
	Shoulder Strap	
Charging	USB Type- C	

ITEM 1: MOBILE IP RADIO (fixed)





TECHNICAL MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR (30 No) MOBILE IP RADIOS

Specification	Minimum Requirements	Bidder's Offer
Mobile IP		Onci
Radio		
	Frequency band 2G, 3G or 4G	
	Color LCD 4.5inch touch screen	
	Unlimited Groups/Friends/Members	
	WiFi (802.16b/g/n)	
	GPS and Wifi Antenna	
	Single Call/Group Call/All Call	
	RAM+ROM 1GB+8GB	
	PC Dispatch Monitor/Call/Stun	
	USB data port	
	Phone call function	
	Call Recorders	
	Multi language support	
	Slot for SIM card	
These radios will be configured to be able to	Voice communication with Ground team, Yards and Operation Control centre and designated groups from the Locomotive.	

do the following:		
	Track movement and map the same in real time	
	Send sms text to designated groups	
	Warranty: 1 Year	

ITEM 2: PORTABLE IP RADIO





TECHNICAL MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR (30 No) PORTABLE IP RADIOS

Specification	Minimum Requirements	Bidder's Offer
PORTABLE		
IP Radio		
	Frequency band 2G, 3G or 4G	
	Large color display, multipoint capacitive touch screen	
	PTT over Cellular network	
	WiFi (802.16b/g/n/ac)	
	GPS	
	4000 mAh Battery	
	Storage 1GB+8 GB, DDR3	
	Bluetooth BT4.0	
	Micro USB 2.0	
	Front 200W and Rear Camera 500W	
	D-36MM, 8Ω, 2W Loud and Clear Voice	
	Quality speaker	
	Quad-core 1.1GHz	
	Slot for SIM card	
	Support up-to 64GB Memory card	
	These radios will be configured to be able to do the following:	

Read QR codes at designated points and update the successful read to software
Locate staff and record daily patrols in
designated areas and update to application
Voice communication with designated groups
Take pictures and upload to application
Secure the radio from misuse.
Warranty: 1 Year

ITEM 3: APPLICATION SOFTWARE AND CLOUD SERVICES

TECHNICAL $\underline{\text{MINIMUM}}$ SPECIFICATIONS FOR (1 No) APPLICATION SOFTWARE

Specification	Minimum Requirements	Bidder's Offer
Dispatcher Software		-
	The software should be able to operate in Windows Server or Linux Operating environment and capable of:	
	Showing locations of all users on a single map.	
	Showing location of locomotive	
	Update required information automatically	
	Modular	
	Capable Phone interconnect capabilities	
Device/Worker Management Software that is capable of:		
	Creating routes	
	Job ticketing/Assignments	
	Geo-fencing	
	Text & Email messaging	
	Enable Sign in to work (time & attendance)	
	Produce Occurrence reports	
	Manager reports	
	Manage remote devices	

ITEM 4: INTEGRATION

Integration of devices to existing Analog, Digital Radio network

ITEM 6: INSTALLATION AND PROJECT MANAGEMENT

Configuration and installation of Radio system as per KR Blueprint document

ITEM 7: RADIO SERVER



TECHNICAL MINIMUM SPECIFICATIONS FOR (1 No) SERVER

Specification	Minimum Requirements	Bidder's Offer
	(1) Intel® Xeon® 4110 (8-	
	Core, 2.1 GHz, 85W) ,	
	(2) 16GB (1x16GB) RDIMM;	
	16 GB RDIMM DR 2600	
	MT/s	
	(3) 2X2TB HDD OR 4X1TB	
	(4) 500W FlexSlot Power	
	Supply,	
	(5) Embedded 4x1Gb,	
	(6) 2xSPF with Modules	
	(7) iLO (standard),	
	(8) P408i-a 8-Port modular	
	Smart Array(Smart Storage	
	battery included.)	
	(9) 1XDVD-ROM,	
	(10) Rack 2U	
	Warranty 3/3/3	

4. Drawings

These Bidding Documents includes the following drawings (which are only for illustration purposes. Actual deliveries must match provided specifications). See illustrations above

5. Inspections and Tests

The following inspections and tests shall be performed:

- i) Inspection shall involve confirming the specifications of the item against what is delivered physically
- ii) Tests shall involve operating the items as will be relevant during inspection exercise

PART 3 - Contract

Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract

Table of Clauses

I. Definitions122
2. Contract Documents 123
3. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices123
4. Interpretation 123
5. Language124
5. Joint Venture, Consortium or Association125
7. Eligibility125
3. Notices
9. Governing Law125
10 Settlement of Disputes120
I1.Inspections and Audit by the Bank120
12. Scope of Supply127
13. Delivery and Documents127
14. Supplier's Responsibilities127
15 Contract Price128
16. Terms of Payment128
17. Taxes and Duties129
18. Performance Security 129
19. Copyright129
20. Confidential Information129
21. Subcontracting 130
22. Specifications and Standards13
23. Packing and Documents 13

24. Insurance	132
25. Transportation and Incidental Services	132
26.Inspections and Tests	132
27.Liquidated Damages	134
28. Warranty	134
29. Patent Indemnity	135
30 Limitation of Liability	136
31.Change in Laws and Regulations	136
32. Force Majeure	136
33. Change Orders and Contract Amendments	137
34.Extensions of Time	138
35. Termination	138
36. Assignment	139
37.Export Restriction	139

Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract

1. Definitions

- 1.1 The following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them:
 - (a) "Bank" means the World Bank and refers to the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) or the International Development Association (IDA).
 - (b) "Contract" means the Contract Agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Supplier, together with the Contract Documents referred to therein, including all attachments, appendices, and all documents incorporated by reference therein.
 - (c) "Contract Documents" means the documents listed in the Contract Agreement, including any amendments thereto.
 - (d) "Contract Price" means the price payable to the Supplier as specified in the Contract Agreement, subject to such additions and adjustments thereto or deductions therefrom, as may be made pursuant to the Contract.
 - (e) "Day" means calendar day.
 - (f) "Completion" means the fulfillment of the Related Services by the Supplier in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract.
 - (g) "GCC" means the General Conditions of Contract.
 - (h) "Goods" means all of the commodities, raw material, machinery and equipment, and/or other materials that the Supplier is required to supply to the Purchaser under the Contract.
 - (i) "Purchaser's Country" is the country specified in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC).
 - (j) "Purchaser" means the entity purchasing the Goods and Related Services, as specified in the **SCC**.
 - (k) "Related Services" means the services incidental to the supply of the goods, such as insurance, installation, training and initial maintenance and other such obligations of the Supplier under the Contract.
 - (I) "SCC" means the Special Conditions of Contract.

- (m) "Subcontractor" means any person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, to whom any part of the Goods to be supplied or execution of any part of the Related Services is subcontracted by the Supplier.
- (n) "Supplier" means the person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, whose bid to perform the Contract has been accepted by the Purchaser and is named as such in the Contract Agreement.
- (o) "The Project Site," where applicable, means the place named in the **SCC**.

2. Contract Documents

2.1 Subject to the order of precedence set forth in the Contract Agreement, all documents forming the Contract (and all parts thereof) are intended to be correlative, complementary, and mutually explanatory. The Contract Agreement shall be read as a whole.

3. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

- 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Appendix 1 to the GCC.
- 3.2 The Purchaser requires the Supplier to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee.

4. Interpretation

4.1 If the context so requires it, singular means plural and vice versa.

4.2 Incoterms

- (a) Unless inconsistent with any provision of the Contract, the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of parties thereunder shall be as prescribed by Incoterms.
- (b) The terms EXW, CIP, FCA, CFR and other similar terms, when used, shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms specified in the SCC and published by the International Chamber of Commerce in Paris, France.

4.3 Entire Agreement

The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Purchaser and the Supplier and supersedes all communications,

negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of the parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract.

4.4 Amendment

No amendment or other variation of the Contract shall be valid unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by a duly authorized representative of each party thereto.

4.5 Non-waiver

- (a) Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 4.5(b) below, no relaxation, forbearance, delay, or indulgence by either party in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of the Contract or the granting of time by either party to the other shall prejudice, affect, or restrict the rights of that party under the Contract, neither shall any waiver by either party of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract.
- (b) Any waiver of a party's rights, powers, or remedies under the Contract must be in writing, dated, and signed by an authorized representative of the party granting such waiver, and must specify the right and the extent to which it is being waived.

4.6 Severability

If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract.

5. Language

- 5.1 The Contract as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Supplier and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language specified in the SCC. Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified, in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this translation shall govern.
- 5.2 The Supplier shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Supplier.

6. Joint Venture, Consortium or Association

6.1 If the Supplier is a joint venture, consortium, or association, all of the parties shall be jointly and severally liable to the Purchaser for the fulfillment of the provisions of the Contract and shall designate one party to act as a leader with authority to bind the joint venture, consortium, or association. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture, consortium, or association shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Purchaser.

7. Eligibility

- 7.1 The Supplier and its Subcontractors shall have the nationality of an eligible country. A Supplier or Subcontractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if it is a citizen or constituted, incorporated, or registered, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country.
- 7.2 All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank shall have their origin in Eligible Countries. For the purpose of this Clause, origin means the country where the goods have been grown, mined, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components.

8. Notices

- 8.1 Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing to the address specified in the **SCC**. The term "in writing" means communicated in written form with proof of receipt.
- 8.2 A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice's effective date, whichever is later.

Governing Law

- 9.1 The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Purchaser's Country, unless otherwise specified in the **SCC.**
- 9.2 Throughout the execution of the Contract, the Supplier shall comply with the import of goods and services prohibitions in the Purchaser's country when
 - (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower's country prohibits commercial relations with that country; or
- 9.2 (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower's Country prohibits any import of goods from that country or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.

10 Settlement of Disputes

- 10.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract.
- 10.2 If, after twenty-eight (28) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the Purchaser or the Supplier may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given. Any dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given in accordance with this Clause shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after delivery of the Goods under the Contract. Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure specified in the SCC.
- 10.3 Notwithstanding any reference to arbitration herein,
 - (a) the parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and
 - (b) the Purchaser shall pay the Supplier any monies due the Supplier.

11.Inspections and Audit by the Bank

- 11.1 The Supplier shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subcontractors to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Goods in such form and details as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.
- 11.2 Pursuant to paragraph 1.16 (e) of Appendix 1 to the General Conditions of Contract, the Supplier shall permit and shall cause its agents (where declared or not), subcontractors, sub consultants, service providers, suppliers, and personnel, to permit, the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the site and/or the accounts, records and other documents relating to the procurement process, selection and/or contract execution, and to have such accounts, records and other documents audited by auditors appointed by the Bank. The Supplier's and its Subcontractors and consultants' attention is drawn to Clause 3 [Fraud and Corruption], which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under this Clause constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Bank's prevailing sanctions procedures).

12. Scope of Supply

12.1 The Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as specified in the Schedule of Requirements.

13. Delivery and Documents

13.1 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 33.1, the Delivery of the Goods and Completion of the Related Services shall be in accordance with the Delivery and Completion Schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements. The details of shipping and other documents to be furnished by the Supplier are specified in the SCC.

14. Supplier's Responsibiliti es

- 14.1 The Supplier shall supply all the Goods and Related Services included in the Scope of Supply in accordance with GCC Clause 12, and the Delivery and Completion Schedule, as per GCC Clause 13.
- 14.2 The Supplier, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage forced labor or persons subject to trafficking, as described in GCC Sub-Clauses 14.3 and 14.4.
- 14.3 Forced labor consists of any work or service, not voluntarily performed, that is exacted from an individual under threat of force or penalty, and includes any kind of involuntary or compulsory labor, such as indentured labor, bonded labor or similar labor-contracting arrangements.
- 14.4 Trafficking in persons is defined as the recruitment, transportation, transfer, harbouring or receipt of persons by means of the threat or use of force or other forms of coercion, abduction, fraud, deception, abuse of power, or of a position of vulnerability, or of the giving or receiving of payments or benefits to achieve the consent of a person having control over another person, for the purposes of exploitation.
- 14.5 The Supplier, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage a child under the age of 14 unless the national law specifies a higher age (the minimum age).
- 14.6 The Supplier, including its Subcontractors, shall not employ or engage a child between the minimum age and the age of 18 in a manner that is likely to be hazardous, or to interfere with, the child's education, or to be harmful to the child's health or physical, mental, spiritual, moral, or social development.
- 14.7 Work considered hazardous for children is work that, by its nature or the circumstances in which it is carried out, is likely to jeopardize the health, safety, or morals of children. Such work activities prohibited for children include work:
 - (a) with exposure to physical, psychological or sexual abuse;
 - (b) underground, underwater, working at heights or in confined spaces;

- (c) with dangerous machinery, equipment or tools, or involving handling or transport of heavy loads;
- (d) in unhealthy environments exposing children to hazardous substances, agents, or processes, or to temperatures, noise or vibration damaging to health; or
- (e) under difficult conditions such as work for long hours, during the night or in confinement on the premises of the employer.
- 14.8 The Supplier shall comply, and shall require its Subcontractors if any to comply, with all applicable health and safety regulations, laws, guidelines, and any other requirement stated in the Technical Specifications.
- 14.9 The Supplier shall comply with additional obligations as **specified in** the **SCC**.
- **15 Contract Price**
- 15.1 Prices charged by the Supplier for the Goods supplied and the Related Services performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its bid, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in the **SCC.**
- 16. Terms of Payment
- 16.1 The Contract Price, including any Advance Payments, if applicable, shall be paid as specified in the **SCC**.
- 16.2 The Supplier's request for payment shall be made to the Purchaser in writing, accompanied by invoices describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered and Related Services performed, and by the documents submitted pursuant to GCC Clause 13 and upon fulfillment of all other obligations stipulated in the Contract.
- 16.3 Payments shall be made promptly by the Purchaser, but in no case later than sixty (60) days after submission of an invoice or request for payment by the Supplier, and after the Purchaser has accepted it.
- 16.4 The currencies in which payments shall be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be those in which the bid price is expressed.
- 16.5 In the event that the Purchaser fails to pay the Supplier any payment by its due date or within the period set forth in the SCC, the Purchaser shall pay to the Supplier interest on the amount of such delayed payment at the rate shown in the SCC, for the period of delay until payment has been made in full, whether before or after judgment or arbitrage award.

17. Taxes and Duties

- 17.1 For goods manufactured outside the Purchaser's Country, the Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, stamp duties, license fees, and other such levies imposed outside the Purchaser's Country.
- 17.2 For goods Manufactured within the Purchaser's country, the Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, duties, license fees, etc., incurred until delivery of the contracted Goods to the Purchaser.
- 17.3 If any tax exemptions, reductions, allowances or privileges may be available to the Supplier in the Purchaser's Country, the Purchaser shall use its best efforts to enable the Supplier to benefit from any such tax savings to the maximum allowable extent.

18. Performance Security

- 18.1 If required as specified in the SCC, the Supplier shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of the notification of contract award, provide a performance security for the performance of the Contract in the amount specified in the **SCC**.
- 18.2 The proceeds of the Performance Security shall be payable to the Purchaser as compensation for any loss resulting from the Supplier's failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.
- 18.3 As specified in the SCC, the Performance Security, if required, shall be denominated in the currency(ies) of the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser; and shall be in one of the format stipulated by the Purchaser in the **SCC**, or in another format acceptable to the Purchaser.
- 18.4 The Performance Security shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of Completion of the Supplier's performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations, unless specified otherwise in the **SCC**.

19. Copyright

19.1 The copyright in all drawings, documents, and other materials containing data and information furnished to the Purchaser by the Supplier herein shall remain vested in the Supplier, or, if they are furnished to the Purchaser directly or through the Supplier by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall remain vested in such third party

20. Confidential Information

20.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall keep confidential and shall not, without the written consent of the other party hereto, divulge to any third party any documents, data, or other information furnished directly or indirectly by the other party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether such information has been

furnished prior to, during or following completion or termination of the Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Supplier may furnish to its Subcontractor such documents, data, and other information it receives from the Purchaser to the extent required for the Subcontractor to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Supplier shall obtain from such Subcontractor an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Supplier under GCC Clause 20.

- 20.2 The Purchaser shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Supplier for any purposes unrelated to the contract. Similarly, the Supplier shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Purchaser for any purpose other than the performance of the Contract.
- 20.3 The obligation of a party under GCC Sub-Clauses 20.1 and 20.2 above, however, shall not apply to information that:
 - the Purchaser or Supplier need to share with the Bank or other institutions participating in the financing of the Contract;
 - (b) now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that party;
 - (c) can be proven to have been possessed by that party at the time of disclosure and which was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other party; or
 - (d) otherwise lawfully becomes available to that party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality.
- 20.4 The above provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality given by either of the parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the Supply or any part thereof.
- 20.5 The provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall survive completion or termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract.

21. Subcontra cting

21.1 The Supplier shall notify the Purchaser in writing of all subcontracts awarded under the Contract if not already specified in the bid. Notification by the Supplier, for addition of any Subcontractor not named in the Contract, shall also include the Subcontractor's declaration in accordance with Appendix 2 to the GCC- Sexual exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment (SH) Performance Declaration. Such notification, in the original bid or later shall not relieve the Supplier from any of

its obligations, duties, responsibilities, or liability under the Contract.

21.2 Subcontracts shall comply with the provisions of GCC Clauses 3 and 7.

22. Specifications and Standards

22.1 Technical Specifications and Drawings

- (a) The Goods and Related Services supplied under this Contract shall conform to the technical specifications and standards mentioned in Section VI, Schedule of Requirements and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, the standard shall be equivalent or superior to the official standards whose application is appropriate to the Goods' country of origin.
- (b) The Supplier shall be entitled to disclaim responsibility for any design, data, drawing, specification or other document, or any modification thereof provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser, by giving a notice of such disclaimer to the Purchaser.
- (c) Wherever references are made in the Contract to codes and standards in accordance with which it shall be executed, the edition or the revised version of such codes and standards shall be those specified in the Schedule of Requirements. During Contract execution, any changes in any such codes and standards shall be applied only after approval by the Purchaser and shall be treated in accordance with GCC Clause 33.

23. Packing and Documents

- 23.1 The Supplier shall provide such packing of the Goods as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their final destination, as indicated in the Contract. During transit, the packing shall be sufficient to withstand, without limitation, rough handling and exposure to extreme temperatures, salt and precipitation, and open storage. Packing case size and weights shall take into consideration, where appropriate, the remoteness of the goods' final destination and the absence of heavy handling facilities at all points in transit.
- 23.2 The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in the Contract, including additional requirements, if any, specified in the **SCC**, and in any other instructions ordered by the Purchaser.

24.Insurance

24.1 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, the Goods supplied under the Contract shall be fully insured—in a freely convertible currency from an eligible country—against loss or damage incidental to manufacture or acquisition, transportation, storage, and delivery, in accordance with the applicable Incoterms or in the manner specified in the **SCC**.

25. Transporta tion and Incidental Services

- 25.1 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, responsibility for arranging transportation of the Goods shall be in accordance with the specified Incoterms.
- 25.2 The Supplier may be required to provide any or all of the following services, including additional services, if any, **specified in SCC:**
 - (a) performance or supervision of on-site assembly and/or start-up of the supplied Goods;
 - (b) furnishing of tools required for assembly and/or maintenance of the supplied Goods;
 - (c) furnishing of a detailed operations and maintenance manual for each appropriate unit of the supplied Goods;
 - (d) performance or supervision or maintenance and/or repair of the supplied Goods, for a period of time agreed by the parties, provided that this service shall not relieve the Supplier of any warranty obligations under this Contract; and
 - (e) training of the Purchaser's personnel, at the Supplier's plant and/or on-site, in assembly, start-up, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods.
- 25.3 Prices charged by the Supplier for incidental services, if not included in the Contract Price for the Goods, shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services

26. Inspections and Tests

- 26.1 The Supplier shall at its own expense and at no cost to the Purchaser carry out all such tests and/or inspections of the Goods and Related Services as are specified in the **SCC**.
- 26.2 The inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, at point of delivery, and/or at the Goods' final destination, or in another place in the Purchaser's Country as specified in the **SCC.** Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 26.3, if conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, all reasonable facilities and assistance,

- including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Purchaser.
- 26.3 The Purchaser or its designated representative shall be entitled to attend the tests and/or inspections referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 26.2, provided that the Purchaser bear all of its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all traveling and board and lodging expenses.
- 26.4 Whenever the Supplier is ready to carry out any such test and inspection, it shall give a reasonable advance notice, including the place and time, to the Purchaser. The Supplier shall obtain from any relevant third party or manufacturer any necessary permission or consent to enable the Purchaser or its designated representative to attend the test and/or inspection.
- 26.5 The Purchaser may require the Supplier to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by the Contract but deemed necessary to verify that the characteristics and performance of the Goods comply with the technical specifications codes and standards under the Contract, provided that the Supplier's reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the carrying out of such test and/or inspection shall be added to the Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection impedes the progress of manufacturing and/or the Supplier's performance of its other obligations under the Contract, due allowance will be made in respect of the Delivery Dates and Completion Dates and the other obligations so affected.
- 26.6 The Supplier shall provide the Purchaser with a report of the results of any such test and/or inspection.
- 26.7 The Purchaser may reject any Goods or any part thereof that fail to pass any test and/or inspection or do not conform to the specifications. The Supplier shall either rectify or replace such rejected Goods or parts thereof or make alterations necessary to meet the specifications at no cost to the Purchaser, and shall repeat the test and/or inspection, at no cost to the Purchaser, upon giving a notice pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.4.
- 26.8 The Supplier agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Goods or any part thereof, nor the attendance by the Purchaser or its representative, nor the issue of any report pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.6, shall release the Supplier from any warranties or other obligations under the Contract.

27. Liquidated Damages

27.1 Except as provided under GCC Clause 32, if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods by the Date(s) of delivery or perform the Related Services within the period specified in the Contract, the Purchaser may without prejudice to all its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage specified in the SCC of the delivered price of the delayed Goods or unperformed Services for each week or part thereof of delay until actual delivery or performance, up to a maximum deduction of the percentage specified in those SCC. Once the maximum is reached, the Purchaser may terminate the Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 35.

28. Warranty

- 28.1 The Supplier warrants that all the Goods are new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, unless provided otherwise in the Contract.
- 28.2 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 22.1(b), the Supplier further warrants that the Goods shall be free from defects arising from any act or omission of the Supplier or arising from design, materials, and workmanship, under normal use in the conditions prevailing in the country of final destination.
- 28.3 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC**, the warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months after the Goods, or any portion thereof as the case may be, have been delivered to and accepted at the final destination indicated in the **SCC**, or for eighteen (18) months after the date of shipment from the port or place of loading in the country of origin, whichever period concludes earlier.
- 28.4 The Purchaser shall give notice to the Supplier stating the nature of any such defects together with all available evidence thereof, promptly following the discovery thereof. The Purchaser shall afford all reasonable opportunity for the Supplier to inspect such defects.
- 28.5 Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in the **SCC**, expeditiously repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, at no cost to the Purchaser.
- 28.6 If having been notified, the Supplier fails to remedy the defect within the period specified in the **SCC**, the Purchaser may proceed to take within a reasonable period such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier's risk and expense and

without prejudice to any other rights which the Purchaser may have against the Supplier under the Contract.

29. Patent Indemnity

- 29.1 The Supplier shall, subject to the Purchaser's compliance with GCC Sub-Clause 29.2, indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and its employees and officers from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Purchaser may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract by reason of:
 - (a) the installation of the Goods by the Supplier or the use of the Goods in the country where the Site is located; and
 - (b) the sale in any country of the products produced by the Goods.

Such indemnity shall not cover any use of the Goods or any part thereof other than for the purpose indicated by or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract, neither any infringement resulting from the use of the Goods or any part thereof, or any products produced thereby in association or combination with any other equipment, plant, or materials not supplied by the Supplier, pursuant to the Contract.

- 29.2 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against the Purchaser arising out of the matters referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 29.1, the Purchaser shall promptly give the Supplier a notice thereof, and the Supplier may at its own expense and in the Purchaser's name conduct such proceedings or claim and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claim.
- 29.3 If the Supplier fails to notify the Purchaser within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then the Purchaser shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf.
- 29.4 The Purchaser shall, at the Supplier's request, afford all available assistance to the Supplier in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Supplier for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.
- 29.5 The Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless the Supplier and its employees, officers, and Subcontractors from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims,

demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney's fees and expenses, which the Supplier may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract arising out of or in connection with any design, data, drawing, specification, or other documents or materials provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser.

30 Limitation of Liability

- 30.1 Except in cases of criminal negligence or willful misconduct,
 - (a) the Supplier shall not be liable to the Purchaser, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, for any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits or interest costs, provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Supplier to pay liquidated damages to the Purchaser and
 - (b) the aggregate liability of the Supplier to the Purchaser, whether under the Contract, in tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the total Contract Price, provided that this limitation shall not apply to the cost of repairing or replacing defective equipment, or to any obligation of the supplier to indemnify the purchaser with respect to patent infringement

31. Change in Laws and Regulations

31.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, if after the date of 28 days prior to date of Bid submission, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or bylaw having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated, or changed in the place of the Purchaser's country where the Site is located (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the Delivery Date and/or the Contract Price, then such Delivery Date and/or Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, to the extent that the Supplier has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced cost shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with GCC Clause 15.

32. Force Majeure

32.1 The Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its Performance Security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.

- 32.2 For purposes of this Clause, "Force Majeure" means an event or situation beyond the control of the Supplier that is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and its origin is not due to negligence or lack of care on the part of the Supplier. Such events may include, but not be limited to, acts of the Purchaser in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes.
- 32.3 If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Purchaser in writing, the Supplier shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event.

33. Change Orders and Contract Amendments

- 33.1 The Purchaser may at any time order the Supplier through notice in accordance GCC Clause 8, to make changes within the general scope of the Contract in any one or more of the following:
 - (a) drawings, designs, or specifications, where Goods to be furnished under the Contract are to be specifically manufactured for the Purchaser;
 - (b) the method of shipment or packing;
 - (c) the place of delivery; and
 - (d) the Related Services to be provided by the Supplier.
- 33.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Supplier's performance of any provisions under the Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or in the Delivery/Completion Schedule, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Supplier for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the Supplier's receipt of the Purchaser's change order.
- 33.3 Prices to be charged by the Supplier for any Related Services that might be needed but which were not included in the Contract shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services.
- 33.4 Subject to the above, no variation in or modification of the terms of the Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties.

34. Extensions of Time

- 34.1 If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Supplier or its subcontractors should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods or completion of Related Services pursuant to GCC Clause 13, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of the delay, its likely duration, and its cause. As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier's notice, the Purchaser shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Supplier's time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of the Contract.
- 34.2 Except in case of Force Majeure, as provided under GCC Clause 32, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its Delivery and Completion obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to GCC Clause 26, unless an extension of time is agreed upon, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 34.1.

35. Termination

35.1 Termination for Default

- (a) The Purchaser, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract in whole or in part:
 - (i) if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods within the period specified in the Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Purchaser pursuant to GCC Clause 34;
 - (ii) if the Supplier fails to perform any other obligation under the Contract; or
 - (iii) if the Supplier, in the judgment of the Purchaser has engaged in Fraud and Corruption, as defined in Appendix 1 to the GCC, in competing for or in executing the Contract.
- (b) In the event the Purchaser terminates the Contract in whole or in part, pursuant to GCC Clause 35.1(a), the Purchaser may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Related Services similar to those undelivered or not performed, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Purchaser for any additional costs for such similar Goods or Related Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent not terminated.

35.2 Termination for Insolvency.

(a) The Purchaser may at any time terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Supplier if the Supplier becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In such event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy that has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Purchaser

35.3 Termination for Convenience.

- (a) The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that termination is for the Purchaser's convenience, the extent to which performance of the Supplier under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.
- (b) The Goods that are complete and ready for shipment within twenty-eight (28) days after the Supplier's receipt of notice of termination shall be accepted by the Purchaser at the Contract terms and prices. For the remaining Goods, the Purchaser may elect:
 - (i) to have any portion completed and delivered at the Contract terms and prices; and/or
 - (ii) to cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed Goods and Related Services and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier.

36. Assignment

36.1 Neither the Purchaser nor the Supplier shall assign, in whole or in part, their obligations under this Contract, except with prior written consent of the other party.

37. Export Restriction

37.1 Notwithstanding any obligation under the Contract to complete all export formalities, any export restrictions attributable to the Purchaser, to the country of the Purchaser, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, which arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, and which substantially impede the Supplier from meeting its obligations under the Contract, shall release the Supplier from the obligation to provide deliveries or services, always provided, however, that the Supplier can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and of the Bank that it has completed all formalities in a timely manner, including applying for permits, authorizations and

licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract. Termination of the Contract on this basis shall be for the Purchaser's convenience pursuant to Sub-Clause 35.3.

APPENDIX 1 Bank's Policy- Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

(text in this Appendix shall not be modified)

Guidelines for Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants by World Bank Borrowers, dated January 2011:

"Fraud and Corruption:

- 1.16 It is the Bank's policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), bidders, suppliers, contractors and their agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts.⁹ In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:
 - (a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:
 - (i) "corrupt practice" is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party; 10;
 - (ii) "fraudulent practice" is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;¹¹
 - (iii) "collusive practice" is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;¹²
 - (iv) "coercive practice" is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;¹³
 - (v) "obstructive practice" is:

In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "another party" refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, "public official" includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a public official; the terms "benefit" and "obligation" relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the "act or omission" is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "parties" refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other's bid prices or other conditions.

For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, "party" refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution.

- (aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or
- (bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank's inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.16(e) below.
- (b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, subcontractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;
- (c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement or the implementation of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;
- (d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank's sanctions procedures,¹⁴ including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (ii) to be a nominated¹⁵:
- (e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors, and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records, and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank."

A firm or individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract upon: (i) completion of the Bank's sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, and through the application the World Bank Group corporate administrative procurement sanctions procedures for fraud and corruption; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an ongoing sanctions proceeding. See footnote 14 and paragraph 8 of Appendix 1 of these Guidelines.

A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower.

APPENDIX 2

Sexual Exploitation and Abuse (SEA) and/or Sexual Harassment (SH) Performance Declaration for Subcontractors

[The following table shall be filled in by each subcontractor proposed by the Supplier, that was not named in the Contract]

Subcontractor's Name: [insert full name]

Date: [insert day, month, year]

Contract reference [insert contract reference]

Page [insert page number] of [insert total number] pages

SEA and/or SH Declaration
We:
☐ (a) have not been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations.
□ (b) are subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations
(c) had been subject to disqualification by the Bank for non-compliance with SEA/ SH obligations, and were removed from the disqualification list. An arbitral award on the disqualification case has been made in our favor.
[If (c) above is applicable, attach evidence of an arbitral award reversing the findings the issues underlying the disqualification.]
Period of disqualification: From: To:
Name of the Subcontractor
Name of the person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Subcontractor
Title of the person signing on behalf of the Subcontractor
Signature of the person named above
Date signed day of,
Countersignature of authorized representative of the Supplier: Signature:
Date signed day of

Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract

The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement and / or amend the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC.

000 4 4(1)	The Division of a country in Manage		
GCC 1.1(i)	The Purchaser's country is: Kenya		
GCC 1.1(j)	The Purchaser is: State Department for Transport		
GCC 1.1 (o)	The Project Site(s)/Final Destination is: State Department for Transport,		
	Transcom House, Ngong' Road and The Kenya Railways Corporation		
GCC 1.1 (p)	The term SEA/SH where used in the Contract has the following meaning:		
	"Sexual Exploitation and Abuse" "(SEA)" means the following:		
	Sexual Exploitation is defined as any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another.		
	Sexual Abuse is defined as the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions.		
	 "Sexual Harassment" "(SH)" is defined as unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature by contractor's personnel with other contractor's, subcontractors' or employer's personnel. 		
GCC 4.2 (a)	The meaning of the trade terms shall be as prescribed by Incoterms.		
GCC 4.2 (b)	The version edition of Incoterms shall be: 2020		
GCC 5.1	The language shall be: English		
GCC 8.1	For <u>notices</u> , the Purchaser's address shall be:		
	Attention: Head, Supply Chain Management Services		
	Street Address: Transcom House, Ngong' Road		
	Floor/ Room number: Upper Ground Floor, Room 23		
	City: Nairobi		
	Country: Kenya		
	Electronic mail address: scms@transport.go.ke		
GCC 9.1	The governing law shall be the law of: Kenya		
GCC 10.2	The rules of procedure for arbitration proceedings pursuant to GCC Clause 10.2 shall be as follows:		

GCC 10.2 (a)—Any dispute arising out of or in connection with this Contract, including any question regarding its existence, validity or termination shall be referred to and finally resolved by arbitration under the Rules of the London Court of International Arbitration, which rules are deemed to be incorporated by reference to this clause. GCC 10.2 (b) - In the case of a dispute between the Purchaser and a Supplier who is a national of the Purchaser's country, the dispute shall be referred to adjudication or arbitration in accordance with the laws of the Purchaser's country. GCC 13.1 Details of Shipping and other Documents to be furnished by the Supplier are: a negotiable bill of lading, a non-negotiable sea way bill, an airway bill, a railway consignment note, a road consignment note, insurance certificate, Manufacturer's or Supplier's warranty certificate, inspection certificate issued by nominated inspection agency, Supplier's factory shipping details and/or any other documents, where applicable. The above documents shall be received by the Purchaser before arrival of the Goods and, if not received, the Supplier will be responsible for any consequent expenses. GCC 14.9 GCC 14.9.1 The Supplier shall have a code of conduct, and provide appropriate sensitization, for the Supplier's personnel carrying out the deliveries and any other activity as may be prescribed, that include, but not limited to, maintaining a safe working environment and not engaging in the following practices: (i) any form of sexual harassment including unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors, and other verbal or physical conduct of a sexual nature with other Supplier's or Purchaser's personnel; (ii) any form of sexual exploitation, which means any actual or attempted abuse of position of vulnerability, differential power or trust, for sexual purposes, including, but not limited to, profiting monetarily, socially or politically from the sexual exploitation of another; any form of sexual abuse, which means the actual or threatened physical intrusion of a sexual nature, whether by force or under unequal or coercive conditions; and (iv) any form of sexual activity with individuals under the age of 18, except in case of pre-existing marriage. GCC 14.9.2 The Purchaser may require the Supplier to remove (or cause to be removed), from the site or other places where the deliveries and any other activity as may be prescribed, is being executed, a Supplier's personnel that undertakes behaviors that are not consistent with the code

	of conduct stated in GCC 14.9.1. Notwithstanding any requirement from the Purchaser to replace any such person, the Supplier shall immediately remove (or cause to be removed) any such person, from the site or other places where the deliveries and any other activity as may be prescribed is being executed. In either case, the Supplier shall promptly appoint, as appropriate, a suitable replacement with equivalent skills and experience.
GCC 15.1	The prices charged for the Goods supplied and the related Services performed shall not be adjustable.
GCC 16.1	Sample provision
	GCC 16.1—The method and conditions of payment to be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be as follows:
	Payment for Goods supplied from abroad:
	Payment of foreign currency portion shall be made in Kenya Shillings in the following manner:
	(i) Advance Payment: Ten (10) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid within thirty (30) days of signing of the Contract, and upon submission of claim and a bank guarantee for equivalent amount valid until the Goods are delivered and in the form provided in the bidding documents or another form acceptable to the Purchaser.
	(ii) On Shipment: Eighty (80) percent of the Contract Price of the Goods shipped shall be paid through irrevocable confirmed letter of credit opened in favor of the Supplier in a bank in its country, upon submission of documents specified in GCC Clause 13.
	(iii) On Acceptance: Ten (10) percent of the Contract Price of Goods received shall be paid within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Goods upon submission of claim supported by the acceptance certificate issued by the Purchaser.
	Payment of local currency portion shall be made in Kenya Shillings within thirty (30) days of presentation of claim supported by a certificate from the Purchaser declaring that the Goods have been delivered and that all other contracted Services have been performed.
	Payment for Goods and Services supplied from within the Purchaser's country:
	Payment for Goods and Services supplied from within the Purchaser's country shall be made in Kenya Shillings, as follows:

	(i) Advance Payment: Ten (10) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid within thirty (30) days of signing of the Contract against a simple receipt and a bank guarantee for the equivalent amount and in the form provided in the bidding documents or another form acceptable to the Purchaser.
	(ii) On Delivery: Eighty (80) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid on receipt of the Goods and upon submission of the documents specified in GCC Clause 13.
	(iii) On Acceptance: The remaining ten (10) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid to the Supplier within thirty (30) days after the date of the acceptance certificate for the respective delivery issued by the Purchaser.
GCC 16.5	The payment-delay period after which the Purchaser shall pay interest to the supplier shall be 15 (Fifteen) days.
	The interest rate that shall be applied is 0.05%
GCC 18.1	A Performance Security shall be required. The amount of the Performance Security shall be: KES
GCC 18.3	If required, the Performance Security shall be in the form of: Demand Guarantee
	If required, the Performance security shall be denominated in the currencies of payment of the Contract, in accordance with their portions of the Contract Price
GCC 18.4	Discharge of the Performance Security shall take place: As stated
GCC 23.2	The packing, marking and documentation within and outside the packages shall be: A hard box material capable of withstanding rough handling including dragging on rough surface without causing damage to the contents, clearly marked as:
	Attn. Team Leader Horn of Africa Gateway Development Project
	State Department for Transport Nairobi, Kenya
GCC 24.1	The insurance coverage shall be as specified in the Incoterms.
GCC 25.1	Responsibility for transportation of the Goods shall be as specified in the Incoterms.
GCC 25.2	Incidental services to be provided are: As stated in the Clause

GCC 26.1	The inspections and tests shall be: At delivery, before goods are accepted in the store. Items shall be randomly selected for tests including but not limited to starting-up and confirming detailed specs as may be relevant. All items will be unpacked to confirm content
GCC 26.2	The Inspections and tests shall be conducted at: State Department for Transport and Kenya Railways Corporation respectively
GCC 27.1	The liquidated damage shall be: 0.1% per week
GCC 27.1	The maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be: 05%
GCC 28.3	The period of validity of the Warranty shall be: 365 days For purposes of the Warranty, the place(s) of final destination(s) shall be: State Department for Transport. In partial modification of the provisions, the warranty period shall be 12 months from date of acceptance of the Goods or 9 months from the date of shipment, whichever occurs earlier. The Supplier shall, in addition, comply with the performance and/or consumption guarantees specified under the Contract. If, for reasons attributable to the Supplier, these guarantees are not attained in whole or in part, the Supplier shall, at its discretion, make such changes, modifications, and/or additions to the Goods or any part thereof as may be necessary in order to attain the contractual guarantees specified in the Contract at its own cost and expense and to carry out further performance tests in accordance with SCC 4,
GCC 28.5	The period for repair or replacement shall be: 30 days.

Attachment: Price Adjustment Formula

If in accordance with GCC 15.1, prices shall be adjustable, the following method shall be used to calculate the price adjustment:

Prices payable to the Supplier, as stated in the Contract, shall be subject to adjustment during performance of the Contract to reflect changes in the cost of labor and material components in accordance with the formula:

$$P_1 = P_0 [a + \underline{bL}_1 + \underline{cM}_1] - P_0$$

 $L_0 \qquad M_0$
 $a + b + c = 1$

in which:

 P_1 = adjustment amount payable to the Supplier.

= Contract Price (base price). P_0

= fixed element representing profits and overheads included in the а Contract Price and generally in the range of five (5) to fifteen (15) percent.

= estimated percentage of labor component in the Contract Price. b

= estimated percentage of material component in the Contract Price. С

= *labor indices applicable to the appropriate industry in the country of L_0, L_1

origin on the base date and date for adjustment, respectively.

 M_0 , M_1 = *material indices for the major raw material on the base date and date for adjustment, respectively, in the country of origin.

The Bidder shall indicate the source of the indices and the base date indices in its bid.

The coefficients a, b, and c as specified by the Purchaser are as follows:

a = [insert value of coefficient]

b= [insert value of coefficient]

c= [insert value of coefficient]

Base date = thirty (30) days prior to the deadline for submission of the bids.

Date of adjustment = [insert number of weeks] weeks prior to date of shipment (representing the mid-point of the period of manufacture).

The above price adjustment formula shall be invoked by either party subject to the following further conditions:

No price adjustment shall be allowed beyond the original delivery dates. As a rule, no price adjustment shall be allowed for periods of delay for which the Supplier is entirely responsible. The Purchaser will, however, be

- entitled to any decrease in the prices of the Goods and Services subject to adjustment.
- (b) If the currency in which the Contract Price P₀ is expressed is different from the currency of origin of the labor and material indices, a correction factor will be applied to avoid incorrect adjustments of the Contract Price. The correction factor shall correspond to the ratio of exchange rates between the two currencies on the base date and the date for adjustment as defined above.
- (c) No price adjustment shall be payable on the portion of the Contract Price paid to the Supplier as advance payment.

Table of Forms

Letter of Acceptance	154
Contract Agreement	155
Performance Security	157
Advance Payment Security	161

Letter of Acceptance

[letterhead paper of the Purchaser]

To: [name and address of the Supplier]	[date]
Subject: Notification of Award Contract No	
This is to notify you that your Bid dated [insert date] for execution the for the Accepted Contract Amount of	, as cted
You are requested to furnish the Performance Security within 28 days accordance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose the of Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, of the Bide Document.	the
Authorized Signature:Name and Title of Signatory:	
Name of Agency:	

Attachment: Contract Agreement

Contract Agreement

THIS AGREEMENT made the [insert: number] day of [insert: wear].

BETWEEN

- (1) [insert complete name of Purchaser], a [insert description of type of legal entity, for example, an agency of the Ministry of of the Government of {insert name of Country of Purchaser}, or corporation incorporated under the laws of {insert name of Country of Purchaser}] and having its principal place of business at [insert address of Purchaser] (hereinafter called "the Purchaser"), of the one part, and
- (2) [insert name of Supplier], a corporation incorporated under the laws of [insert: country of Supplier] and having its principal place of business at [insert: address of Supplier] (hereinafter called "the Supplier"), of the other part:

WHEREAS the Purchaser invited bids for certain Goods and ancillary services, viz., [insert brief description of Goods and Services] and has accepted a Bid by the Supplier for the supply of those Goods and Services

The Purchaser and the Supplier agree as follows:

- 1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Contract documents referred to.
- 2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other contract documents.
 - (a) the Letter of Acceptance
 - (b) the Letter of Bid
 - (c) the Addenda Nos.____ (if any)
 - (d) Special Conditions of Contract
 - (e) General Conditions of Contract
 - (f) the Specification (including Schedule of Requirements and Technical Specifications)
 - (g) the completed Schedules (including Price Schedules)

- (h) any other document listed in GCC as forming part of the Contract
- 3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Purchaser to the Supplier as specified in this Agreement, the Supplier hereby covenants with the Purchaser to provide the Goods and Services and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.
- 4. The Purchaser hereby covenants to pay the Supplier in consideration of the provision of the Goods and Services and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of *[insert the name of the Contract governing law country]* on the day, month and year indicated above.

For and on behalf of the Purchaser

Signed: [insert signature] in the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation] in the presence of [insert identification of official witness]

For and on behalf of the Supplier

Signed: [insert signature of authorized representative(s) of the Supplier] in the capacity of [insert title or other appropriate designation] in the presence of [insert identification of official witness]

Performance Security

Option 1: (Bank Guarantee)

[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Beneficiary: [insert name and Address of Purchaser]

Date: _ [Insert date of issue]

demand or the sum specified therein.

that date.

PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]

We have been informed that _ [insert name of Supplier, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the supply of _ [insert name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a performance guarantee is required.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount in figures]

(_______) [insert amount in words], 1 such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or

identifying the demand, stating that the Applicant is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Contract, without the Beneficiary needing to prove or to show grounds for your

This guarantee shall expire, no later than the Day of, 2... ², and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office indicated above on or before

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount specified in the Letter of Acceptance, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.

Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date as described in GC Clause 18.4. The Purchaser should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, the

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

_____[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.

Purchaser would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Purchaser might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: "The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months] [one year], in response to the Beneficiary's written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee."

Option 2: Performance Bond

By this Bond [insert name of Principal] as Principal (hereinafter called "the Supplier") and [insert name of Surety] as Surety (hereinafter called "the Surety"), are held and firmly bound unto [insert name of Purchaser] as Obligee (hereinafter called "the Supplier") in the amount of [insert amount in words and figures], for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, the Supplier and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS the Supplier has entered into a written Agreement with the Purchaser dated the __day of ______, 20 _____, for [name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services] in accordance with the documents, plans, specifications, and amendments thereto, which to the extent herein provided for, are by reference made part hereof and are hereinafter referred to as the Contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Condition of this Obligation is such that, if the Supplier shall promptly and faithfully perform the said Contract (including any amendments thereto), then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect. Whenever the Supplier shall be, and declared by the Purchaser to be, in default under the Contract, the Purchaser having performed the Purchaser's obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the default, or shall promptly:

- (1) complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or
- (2) obtain a Bid or bids from qualified Bidders for submission to the Purchaser for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the Purchaser and the Surety of the lowest responsive Bidder, arrange for a Contract between such Bidder and Purchaser and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or a succession of defaults under the Contract or Contracts of completion arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the Balance of the Contract Price; but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which the Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. The term "Balance of the Contract Price," as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable by Purchaser to Supplier under the Contract, less the amount properly paid by Purchaser to Contractor; or
- (3) pay the Purchaser the amount required by Purchaser to complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions up to a total not exceeding the amount of this Bond.

The Surety shall not be liable for a greater sum than the specified penalty of this Bond.

Any suit under this Bond must be instituted not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of completion of the Supplier's performance of its obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than the Purchaser named herein or the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Purchaser.

the Surety has caused the attested by the signature of	upplier has hereunto set his hand and affix ese presents to be sealed with his corp his legal representative, this20	orate seal duly day of
SIGNED ON	on behalf of	
Ву	in the capacity of	
In the presence of		
SIGNED ON	on behalf of	
Ву	in the capacity of	
In the presence of		

Advance Payment Security

[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]

Beneficiary: [Insert name and Address of Purchaser]

Date: [Insert date of issue]

ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.: [Insert guarantee reference number]

Guarantor: [Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the

letterhead]

We have been informed that [insert name of Supplier, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture] (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. [insert reference number of the contract] dated [insert date] with the Beneficiary, for the execution of [insert name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services] (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum [insert amount in figures] () [insert amount in words] is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of [insert amount in figures] [insert amount in words]¹ upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary's complying demand supported by the Beneficiary's statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating either that the Applicant:

- (a) has used the advance payment for purposes other than toward delivery of Goods; or
- (b) has failed to repay the advance payment in accordance with the Contract conditions, specifying the amount which the Applicant has failed to repay.

The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the advance payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser.

A demand under this guarantee may be presented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a certificate from the Beneficiary's bank stating that the advance payment referred to above has been credited to the Applicant on its account number [insert number] at [insert name and address of Applicant's bank].

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Applicant as specified in copies of interim statements or payment certificates which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of a copy of the interim payment certificate indicating that ninety (90) percent of the Accepted Contract Amount, has been certified for payment, or on the [insert day] day of [insert month], 2 [insert year], whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No.758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

[signature(s)]

Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.